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This document contains statements about expected future events and financials of Hiranandani Financial Services, which are forward-looking. By their nature, forward-
looking statements require the Company to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is a significant risk that the assumptions, 
predictions, and other forward-looking statements may not prove to be accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements as 
several factors could cause assumptions, actual future results and events to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Accordingly, this 
document is subject to the disclaimer and qualified in its entirety by the assumptions, qualifications and risk factors referred to in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
section of this Annual Report.
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Fulfilling Dreams,  
Partnering Growth.
For the past five years, we at Hiranandani 

Financial  Services, have ensured a strong 

forward momentum while achieving our vision 

with utmost truth and loyalty. As a part of our 

strategic roadmap, we persistently provided 

uninterrupted credit facilities catering 

individual requirements. Thus, enabling us 

to become a preferred financial institution for 

Micro and Small Businesses in India. 

Our headstrong attitude and clearly defined priorities helped 

us endure the trying times. Progress was observed in a 

continual manner, in the form of learnings, while maintaining 

employee well-being.

The growth of India as a major commercial power is largely 

due to the MSMEs. Indian MSMEs naturally have an edge 

when trying to gauge the pulse of their target market. This 

is owing to the nation’s geographical features and cultural 

diversity of the nation. 

A gradual recovery in the economy is leading growth 

prospects for the non-banking credit sector. There lies 

immense untapped potential, including the Tier-2 and Tier-3 

that remains deprived of timely/suitable financial assistance. 

Our plan is therefore, to expand and reach nooks and 

corners of the country through integration of technology and 

capabilities. 

HFS is dedicated to fostering the sector’s growth potential 

by offering a prompt financial assistance. Its mission 

is to become the lender of choice for Micro and small 

entrepreneurs in India, who are dealing with a lack of 

institutional capital. Since the Company’s inception in 

2017, we’ve remained guided by our belief of turning 

dreams into reality. Our pursuit of growth stays interwoven 

with these aspirations, while fostering growth of small and 

local businesses. Herein, we are confident of our industry 

understanding as well as of our diligent team, to resist further 

headwinds while serving our commitment of fulfilling 

dreams and partnering growth.

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited2



KEY Highlights OF 2021-22

 Financial 

` 37 Crore 
Net Interest Income

` 420 Crore  
Assets Under Management (AUM) 

` 392 Crore 
Networth

Annual Report 2021-22 3

Financial Statements
46-91

Statutory Reports
31-44

Corporate Overview
02-29



Pioneer in Developing Inclusive, 
Landmark Communities 

Within over four decades of rich legacy, HOH 

has become one of the most respected real 

estate developers in Mumbai. Since its inception 

in 1978, the Group has been dedicatedly 

forging ahead under the privileged tutelage 

of Mr. Surendra Hiranandani and has become 

a renowned pioneer in developing upscale 

neighbourhoods that offer the finest lifestyle 

experiences. 

The Group has created an identity for itself  

with immense experience and expertise of over 

four decades in the real estate sector. HOH 

has always strived to create new milestones 

by integrating principles of exceptional 

architectural insights, seamless planning, 

execution and outstanding construction quality 

at the core of its business practices.

The Group’s ultimate goal has always been 

to integrate families into a larger and more 

inclusive community. Our construction and 

our development encompasses the full range 

of aspects of residents’ lives through retail 

stores, visitor centres, medical and educational 

facilities, that we have built in the House of 

Hiranandani community areas. 

House of Hiranandani (HOH)

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited4



4
Decades of Expertise

40 Million Sq. Ft. 
Area Developed

22,445 
Homes Delivered

Our Pillars of Success

�� Innovation

�� Customer Focus

�� Superior Design

�� Quality Construction

�� Trust and Transparency

Social Impact 

79,748  
Students Educated

44,264
Trees Planted

Annual Report 2021-22 5

Financial statements
46-92

Statutory Reports
30-44

Corporate Overview
02-29



Brief Overview 
Hiranandani Financial Services

` 331 Crore  
Loans Disbursed in 
2021-22

1,600+
Customers

    600
Employee Strength

     50
No. of Branches

Hiranandani Financial Services Pvt ltd. 

(‘HFS’ or ‘We’) addresses credit needs of 

India’s largely underserved segment, the 

Micro and Small Businesses. Our vision 

is to be a strategic partner in propelling 

growth of Micro and Small Entrepreneurs 

in India, and facilitating of a million 

dreams, supported by technology and 

innovation.

HFS is a new-age NBFC, supported 

by leading corporation – House of 

Hiranandani, a brand synonymous with 

excellence and always striving to create 

value for all stakeholders at every stage 

of development.

The MSME sector in India is growing 

rapidly and has become a mainstay of 

the country’s economic and self-reliance 

goals. With millions of entrepreneurial 

dreams driving the sector, timely financial 

support and reliability are needed to 

scale up their businesses. At HFS, we aim 

to meet the growing needs of MSMEs 

in India, helping business owners with 

the right financial products for them to 

achieve their business ambitions. 

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited6
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To maintain the highest level of 
governance, sound business practices 
and a firm commitment to credit standards. 
We intend to be a customer-centric 
organisation and offer a unique value 
proposition to every customer as per their 
requirements.

Mission

Own the Customer Experience 

Win Together 

Build Credibility and Trust 

Improve Everyday

Our Core Values 

To be the preferred financial partner for 
the Micro & Small Enterprises of India.

Vision

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited8
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Rajasthan
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Key milestones achieved in 2021-22

�� Expanded branch network to 50 across 7 states

�� Retail portfolio crossed ` 400 Crore

�� Our employees count reached to 597 as on March 31, 2022

�� We have ratings from CARE  

Short term “Care A2 +/ Stable” rating 

Long term “Care A -/ Stable” rating 

Our differentiators

�� An established brand name – 
Hiranandani

�� Strong governance structure

�� Experienced professional 
management

�� Sector expertise

�� Healthy capitalisation

�� Secured portfolio

Disclaimer: This map is a generalised illustration only for the ease of the reader to understand the locations, and is not intended to be used for reference purposes. The representation of political 
boundaries and the names of geographical features/ states do not necessarily reflect the actual position. The Company or any of its directors, officers or employees, cannot be held responsible for any 
misuse or misinterpretation of any information or design thereof. The Company does not warrant or represent any kind of connection to its accuracy or completeness.

Gujarat 
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Our Product Offerings  
Driving Our Partnerships & Progress

Secured Business Loan

Loans with security of 
�residential or commercial� 
property

Loan amount:  

` 5-25 Lakhs

Tenure:  

60-120 Months

Yield range:  

15-20%

TARGET AUDIENCE

�� Manufacturer

�� Services

�� Retailer

�� Trader

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited10



Unsecured  Business Loan

Loan amount:  

` 3-10 Lakhs

Tenure:  

24-36 Months

Yield range:  

22-25%
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Promoter’s  Communique

It is a moment of pride 
and honour to have 
transcended through 

another challenging year and 
attained growth at HFS. Despite 
uncertain global dynamics we 
maintained direct customer contact 
and brand presence. This was mainly 
led by our strategic distribution 
model, while prioritising employee 
safety throughout business conduct. 

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited12



Dear Stakeholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to 

present to you all the 5th Annual Report 

of Hiranandani Financial Services 

Private Limited. Our priority as a 

company during the various hurdles in 

the past year was ensuring progress, 

in the form of learnings, as well as 

employee well-being. We continued 

our thrust on retail expansion, further 

increasing 23 new branches across 

India and going deeper in our existing 

geographies. Currently, we are present 

across seven states in India. We 

provided support to our team through 

work-from-home arrangements, 

medical assistance and employee 

vaccination programme. This induced 

productivity and reduced exhaustion. 

The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 

and subsequent waves was prolonged 

and intense, felt by every nook and 

corner of the world and economy. The 

Non-Banking Financial sector (NBFC) 

was also significantly impacted by the 

second and third wave in 2021-22. 

However, we are observing early signs 

of recovery in the sector. The decline 

in the non-banking credit growth is 

stabilising and is expected to gain 

positive momentum in the upcoming 

years as the economy returns to pre-

pandemic level growth. Overall loan 

disbursements are already improving 

and credit quality is also holding firm.

 

Putting in efforts to adapt to the 

changes brought in by the Covid-19 

pandemic technology played a key 

role in resuming economic activities 

while following the Covid-19 protocols. 

On the technology front, our focus 

continues to be on utilising technology 

to improve our distribution, help our 

credit underwriting and enhance our 

customer service.  

We remained proactive in our 

decision-making to build team 

resilience, preserve business 

continuity and reinforce customer 

centricity. We are proud to say that 

we crossed ` 331 Crore of total loan 

disbursements. Our AUM crossed  

` 400 Crore in the past financial year. 

In surfing through the tough times 

to achieve such growth, our prudent 

leadership team and motivated 

employees were our biggest strength. 

As on March 31, 2022, our total 

employee count crossed 600.

provide diversified opportunities to 

put in practice. Additionally, our efforts 

this far shall give us a solid platform 

upon which we can further scale up. 

Our mission continues to be serving 

the needs of the underserved MSME 

sector and fulfilling their dreams, while 

partnering with many more customers 

to achieve the new leg of growth  

at HFS.

Reflecting on the year went by, I would 

like to acknowledge the contribution 

of my fellow Board members and 

the Management. I would also like to 

thank our customers, channel partners, 

technology partners, banking partners 

and stakeholders at large, who 

supported us in our journey. I remain 

grateful to the entire HFS team for their 

positivity and commitment and look 

forward to even better times ahead.

Regards,

Harsh S. Hiranandani
Promoter & Director“We are proud to say that we 

crossed ` 331 Crore of total 

loan disbursements. Our 

AUM crossed ` 400 Crore 

in the past financial year.”

We are optimistic that a significant 

economic boost in 2022-23 will 
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From the  CEO

At HFS, our capabilities and 
confidence position us well in 
the industry, such that we can 

prepare ourselves for uncertainties while 
enhancing our performance. The team we 
built through our journey of four years is 
the propeller of our course. With a talented 
group of professionals, I feel hopeful 
about navigating challenges without 
compromising on the success stories we 
aspire to create and recreate.“ 

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited14



Dear Stakeholders,

The last couple of years have indeed 

been challenging for our nation and 

our people – witnessing the impact 

of the Covid-19 pandemic waves. As 

the world continues to fight with the 

pandemic’s various strains, still finding 

ways to eliminate the virus, we are 

consistently adapting and accepting 

our present. While overcoming 

disruptions caused by the pandemic, 

institutions held onto their roots 

and strengthened their principles, 

emerging stronger and wiser. I thank 

the front-line workers for giving in 

so much to humankind. I also feel 

fortunate to have a team that endured 

and navigated the challenges imposed 

on us, with determination and hard 

work.

At HFS, 2021-22 was a progressive 

year wherein we added several 

milestones to our growth story. 

We made significant progress in 

strengthening our foundation on the 

back of our network and an efficient 

talent pool. The following are some 

of the highlights of our 2021-22 

performance:

�� Scaled up geographical presence 

with a distribution network spread 

across 7 states and 50 branches

�� AUM crossed ` 400 Crore 

�� Enhanced asset quality

�� Crossed employee strength over 

500 

�� Received first-ever credit rating: 

Rated A- by CARE Ratings – an 

encouraging external validation of 

our good business practices and 

sound business model

The year ahead looks exciting with our 

economy recovering and returning to 

pre-Covid levels. As per estimates, the 

GDP is expected to grow more than 

7% and India is poised to become one 

of the countries with leading growth 

momentum. The credit demand is 

expected to be robust. Therefore, 

serving HFS with great opportunities 

for building a progressive growth 

trajectory.

At HFS, our capabilities and 

confidence position us well in the 

industry, such that we can prepare 

ourselves for uncertainties while 

enhancing our performance. The team 

we built through our journey of four 

years is the propeller of our course. 

With a talented group of professionals, 

I feel hopeful about navigating 

challenges without compromising on 

the success stories we aspire to create 

and recreate.  

The Company remains firmly rooted 

to its foundational beliefs such that it is 

driven at all times to create sustainable 

value and build long-term stakeholder 

equations. Customers remain the 

cornerstone of our approach while 

we consistently enhance our abilities 

to improve our offerings. Thus, 

leveraging benefits to customers as 

well as enhancing overall business 

performance. I would like to thank 

the Board, my colleagues and all the 

employees for having contributed in 

the long-term vision of the organisation 

through their diligence and hard work. 

As we continue on strong-footing, I 

hope to preserve the customer trust 

earned over the years and better 

serve our commitments with higher 

resilience in the face of adversity. 

With this, I keenly look forward to the 

continued support of our customers 

and shareholders to embark upon 

another successful year of our journey. 

Regards,

Uday Suvarna
Chief Executive Officer
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Integrating Technology
Accelerating Our Growth to 
Fulfil Targets

We strive to integrate technology wherever possible for ease of operations. It 

involves making extensive use of Cloud-based platforms. We have formulated 

a clear, new development policy prioritising Cloud-first technology. We have 

undertaken the ‘Security by Design’ approach to software and hardware 

development that seeks to make systems free of vulnerabilities and impervious 

to attack. The measures under this policy are namely testing, authentication 

safeguarding and adherence to best programming practices.

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited16



�� Integrated work from home 

by utilising the best-in-class IT 

architecture built on the Cloud 

and secure Internet access to 

corporate processes and apps 

(WFH).

�� Provided key solutions 

to businesses and 

helped them ensure cost 

effectiveness, business 

scalability and continuity.

IT Architecture 

�� Integrated Information 

Technology and Security 

practices across our 

governance structure, security 

and procedures, to reduce 

information technology-related 

risks.

�� Formulated a thorough data 

leakage policy approved by 

the Board, within a business 

continuity plan.

�� Installed technological and 

operational controls to control 

privileged access to systems.

�� Implemented framework for 

cyber resilience to lessen threats 

like malware, denial-of-service 

attacks and data breaches. 

Security

�� Utilised cloud technologies for 

communication, antivirus, vendor 

payment and HRSM systems to 

boost productivity and efficiency.

�� Implemented strong platforms 

for mobility and collaboration 

to make the organisation more 

adaptable to constantly changing 

business demands and to create 

a platform that improves security, 

data integrity and accessibility to 

the Company’s IT systems.

�� Implemented cloud telephony 

and digital platforms like 

WhatsApp as communication 

conduits with the clients.

�� Enhanced our digital platform by 

integrating Artificial Intelligence 

and Robotic Process Automation 

(RPA) to promote business 

expansion, automate procedures, 

boost output and improve 

customer experience.

�� Implemented disaster 

recovery strategies. 

Cloud 
Technologies 
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Risk Management
Maintaining Vigilance and Agility
HFS has an independent risk management structure under the custodianship of Chief Risk Officer. 

The function is to identify, assess and monitor risks, strengthen controls and minimise losses. 

The Company’s Enterprise Risk Management framework ensures integration of best-in-class 

management practices to develop strong risk culture in the organisational workflow with a multi-

tiered governance structure.

The risk management framework comprises a three-layered defence gate control which is as follows:

First Layer: Comprises the Business units who are accountable for operational risks and controls in their 

respective areas

Second Layer: Comprises the Internal Control Unit/Operational Risk Management unit which develops and 

implements policies/processes, procedures, tools and techniques to assess and monitor the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls

Third Layer: Comprises the Internal Audit which reviews the effectiveness of governance, risk management 

and internal controls

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited18



Risk Management Framework at HFS 

RMC/Board Oversight

1st Line of Defence

Operational and 
Business Units

  External Auditors Regulators

3rd Line of Defence

Internal Audit-
independent, Review

2nd Line of Defence

Operational, InfoSec, 
Compliance

RMC

Risk management process is continuously reviewed and adapted in the context of changing risk scenarios within and 

around the organisation. The framework is therefore, dynamic and agile to adopt the relevant changes. 

The Company assesses the fitness of the Company’s risk management process on an event-driven basis. The effectiveness 

of this framework is supervised periodically by the Risk Management Committee and updated to Board.

In terms of execution, HFS has well-constituted risk management process covering majorly three distinct components:

�� Business risks assessment 

�� Operational controls assessment 

�� Compliance processes assessment
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Customer Testimonials

My agriculture business required an extra push for 

growth and I knew I had to invest more money to upgrade my 

equipment. Hence, I decided to take a loan from HFS. It was 

very easy to get a loan from them and helped me a lot in making 

my daily work easier.

Sunil Yadav
Business Name: Yadav Fawarra

I have had my Super Mart for quiet some time now and 

I wanted to increase the stocks for better service to my 

customers. I took a loan from HFS for this and I have to say that 

due to their help, I was able to expand my inventory. I am very 

happy that I took this loan from HFS.

Hajari lal khorwal
Business Name: Hajari Super Mart 

With my business of men’s salon going well, I knew I 

wanted to do something more and upgrade my business. So, I 

decided to open a ladies’ salon with my wife and for this, I took a 

loan from HFS and because of their quick process, we were 

able to quickly turn this dream of ours into a reality.

. 

Surendra Sain 
Business Name: Unique Hair Salon  

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited20



For quite some time, I knew I wanted to improve the 

day-to-day operations of my car and bike wash and for that,  

I took a loan from HFS. I have to say that due to their simple and 

quick process, I was completely satisfied with their services and 

have no complaints.

Rajbabu
Business Name: SKLM Water Servicing

I have my business, Atharva Enterprises, at Sane Guruji 

Vasahat in Kolhapur. I had various business requirements and 

for all of them, the solution was HFS. They provided me with a 

substantial amount of loan and I received a very positive 

turnover after it. 

I highly recommend HFS to everyone who wants to see their 

business grow as they are highly attentive to their customers 

and provide really good service.

Maheshdada Mhaske
Business Name: Atharva Enterprise 

From a long time, I knew it was time to expand my auto 

garage and service station business. That is why I approached 

HFS for a loan, and I am very happy with the service they 

provided. Today, a part of my business is continuing because of 

them and I am glad to have partnered with HFS!

Ashok Patadiya  
Business Name: Auto Garage and Service Station 
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Our People
Propelling Our Progress 
HFS has progressively expanded over the past four years to become a team of over 500 employees 

scattered across 7 states and 50 locations. The team has successfully navigated through the 

two Covid-19 pandemic waves and difficult macroeconomic obstacles, emerging as a more 

knowledgeable and resilient group. All of this was possible only because of resilient, well-defined 

strategies and incessant efforts for creating a great team. 

During the pandemic, we ensured our employees got themselves vaccinated against Covid-19 as an 

organisational priority, with over 90% staff fully vaccinated by September 2021. We prioritise the well-

being of our employees and therefore, our health & safety protocols continue to remain in force. Also, 

employees are expected to exercise caution in case they experience symptoms by wearing face masks 

and maintaining social distancing.  

At HFS, we believe that an engaged workforce is a productive workforce. With a focus on continuously 

improving engagement, we concentrated our efforts on areas - Communication, Recognition and 

Development. The following are the various aspects of how we strive to ensure efficiency and 

productivity within our team and operations.

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited22



Communication

Inductions are held on the final 

working day of the week, and new 

recruits get orientation within the first 

15 days of their employment. Every 

month, branches from a particular 

state or region engage in organised 

conversations with teams from the 

corporate office that handle central 

functions, including risk, product, IT, 

HR, operations and administration. 

These meetings assist in addressing 

and resolving local problems while 

also providing regional teams with an 

opportunity to share ideas and inputs 

that can significantly influence and 

enhance their performance. 

Moreover, through an employee 

mobile app that includes a frequently 

updated Employee Handbook, 

Recognition

We conduct monthly Employee 

Awards Programme wherein 

employees are honoured in the 

categories of Culture Champions (for 

regularly upholding HFS’ key values) 

and Shining Star (for outstanding 

performance for the month gone 

by). These awards were given out 

to 17 people in 2021-22, while 5 

employees additionally received 

the first-ever, ‘Exemplar of Values’ 

Award. Employees that surpass their 

performance goals are frequently 

recognised in our quarterly employee 

publication, PULSE, as well as in 

organisational announcement emails. 

Thus, keeping the team motivated and 

encouraging them to improve their 

productivity, backed by a sense of 

team spirit and achievement.

Development

We undertake training sessions for 

upskilling and equipping them with 

relevant industry knowledge. In this 

direction, we introduced NIRMAN 

in the first half of the year. It is a 

learning module for sales product 

and process training. We also 

introduced AARAMBH, our learning 

module for credit training – planned 

and developed in-house. For both 

new hiring and tenured personnel, 

monthly training sessions were held. 

With the debut of our online learning 

platform, HFS Academy, in January 

2022, we went digital and provided 

our employees with the ability to learn 

online. All of our staff members now 

have online access to NIRMAN and 

AARAMBH. These initiatives are indeed 

emerging as recognised facilitators of 

HFS’ growth.

Every employee has access to 

‘Anytime/Anywhere Learning,’ facility 

and new hires particularly benefit 

greatly from it. New courses on E-Nach, 

Cash Handling and New Joinee 

Orientation have also been made 

available on the site since the debut of 

HFS Academy.

While 2021-22 was about surviving 

and navigating external problems, 

2022-23 will be about taking that major 

step to systemic importance. The basis 

upon which the HFS development 

story will be written is and will always 

be our employees. We are prepared 

for a considerable way forward in 

2022-23, and our pursuit of attaining 

organisational goals will depend on 

having a motivated and engaged 

team. It is, therefore, crucial to develop 

programmes and procedures that will 

support organisational  

alignment and long-term  

careers of our  

personnel. 

the Company ensures clarity in 

communication by outlining employee 

policies and procedures and keeping it 

handy for reference.
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Governance
Leading Force of Our Business

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited24



Governance Philosophy 

Sound corporate governance principles are potent facilitators 

that inspire stakeholders’ trust and confidence. It is a 

prominent sign of a well-run business and necessary for 

long-term value growth. To achieve sustainable growth, we 

maintain transparency and ethics in doing business.

At HFS, our robust governance framework involving effective 

procedures back our smooth functioning and ability to draw 

investment while upholding the rights of our stakeholders 

and delivering value to them.

Role of the Board 

The Board is dedicated to representing stakeholders’ long-

term interests, ensuring sound management of the firm, 

and using honest business judgement when it comes to 

corporate issues.

The wealth and diversity of experience and expertise of our 

Board of Directors, as well as its reputation for professional 

ethics, are well appreciated. Our operations are strategically 

supervised by the Board of Directors. The CEO is assisted 

by a capable management team and is under the Board’s 

supervision as they oversee HFS’ daily operations.

Board Diversity

An optimum blend of skills and knowledge is essential for a 

business to succeed. A good mix of independent and non-

executive directors make up our Board. The independent 

directors are seasoned financial services professionals with 

more than 20 years of experience.

Committees

To assure the execution of key initiatives and to offer proper 

direction, there are many committees overlooking the daily 

operations of HFS. The significant committees are as follows:

Risk Management 

Committee

Asset Liability 

Management Committee

Finance Committee 

Investment Committee
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Board of Directors

Mr. Harsh Hiranandani  
Promoter & Director

Mr. Harsh Hiranandani is the Founder 

and Promoter of the Company and is 

instrumental in conceptualising and 

establishing Hiranandani Financial 

Services. He is a University of Chicago 

Graduate, majored in Economics with 

honours.

Mr. Hiranandani began his career in the 

investment banking division of Credit 

Suisse in New York, where he was 

involved in numerous cross-border 

advisory and fund-raising transactions. 

He has been with the House of 

Hiranandani, a leading township 

developer in India. His responsibility 

is Group’s business development 

across multiple asset classes. 

Ms. Neha Hiranandani 
Promoter & Director

Ms. Neha Hiranandani has successfully 

combined her business acumen and 

strategic mindset to help House of 

Hiranandani establish itself as one of 

the most prestigious and sought-after 

brands in Indian real estate. She is a 

Law Graduate from India and is also a 

University of Virginia alumnus.

Ms. Neha’s focused and visionary 

approach assisted our Company 

in meeting a number of ambitious 

goals in a short period of time. At 

present, she intends to aggressively 

expand our Company’s already 

existing presence in the top-tier 

cities in the residential, built-to-suit 

commercial and education sectors.
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Mr. Utpal Sheth 
Independent Director

Mr. G. S. Lodha 
Director

Mr. Prem Kumar Chophla 
Independent Director

Mr. Utpal Sheth provides perspective 

for our Company’s long-term growth. 

He is a Graduate in Commerce and 

Cost and Works Accountancy (CWA) 

and a Member of the Institute of 

Chartered Financial Analysts of India 

(ICFAI). His knowledge and presence 

in HFS ensures that the highest level 

of corporate governance is being 

maintained in order to balance the 

interests of all stakeholders.

Mr. Sheth is the Founder and Mentor 

of Trust Group and Chanakya 

Wealth Creation, and the Chief 

Executive Officer and Senior Partner 

of Rare Enterprises. Moreover, he 

serves on the boards of several 

public and private corporations. 

Mr. G. S. Lodha’s business acumen and 

foresight have always added value for 

all our stakeholders. He has over 40 

years of professional experience and is 

a member of the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) and the 

Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India (ICSI). Mr. Lodha possesses 

extensive knowledge on real estate, 

steel, futures and commodities trading, 

and international financial markets.

Furthermore, he is a skilled 

communicator with a thorough 

understanding of numerous Indian 

laws and extensive international 

business experience. With his distinct 

entrepreneurial management style, 

Mr. Lodha has architected and 

transformed businesses involving 

deal structuring, M&A advisory, 

and joint ventures, among other. 

A Certified Associate of the Indian 

Institute of Bankers (CAIIB) and a 

Master’s degree holder in Finance & 

Control, Mr. Prem Kumar Chophla’s 

acumen and rich experience speak  

for itself.

He held the position of the Chief 

General Manager at the Reserve Bank 

of India (RBI) until his retirement in 

2018. He was associated with the RBI 

since 1982 in several key divisions, 

including Bank Supervision, NBFC, Risk 

Assessment, Financial Inclusion, IT 

Strategy and Internal Controls.

He also holds an International 

Certification in Banking Risk & 

Regulation (ICBRR) and has 

done an executive programme in 

Business Management from IIM.
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Leadership Team

Mr. Kartik Nagda is in-charge of driving 

our Company’s overall business 

growth and overseeing retail sales, 

product development, and marketing. 

He is a Graduate of the Symbiosis 

Institute of International Business in 

Pune. Mr. Nagda holds over 20 years 

of experience in the retail lending 

industry. 

Mr. Nagda has formerly worked 

with various other companies/

organisations, including HDFC 

Bank,-where he was the Head of 

their Mortgage Business and the 

Emerging Enterprise Group-GE 

Money and Navneet Publications.

Mr. Kartik Nagda 
Chief Business Officer

Mr. Uday Suvarna is responsible 

for laying out the vision, creating 

both short and long-term strategic 

frameworks, and ensuring their 

execution towards achieving the 

organisational goals. He is a seasoned 

professional with a proven track 

record in building scalable and 

profitable businesses. Mr. Suvarna has 

a Master’s Degree in Management 

Studies and a Bachelor’s Degree in 

Science from the Mumbai University.

He has more than two decades 

of experience in retail and SME 

lending. He has worked with major 

retail finance companies such as 

IndusInd Bank, HDFC Bank, and 

GE Money. Mr. Suvarna served as 

the Executive Vice President of 

IndusInd Bank before joining HFS.

Mr. Uday Suvarna 
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Dheeraj Mittal is in-charge of HFS’s 

central and branch operations, IT, and 

administration functions. He holds 

a Masters in Finance Administration 

and a Masters in Commerce from the 

Devi Ahilya University (DAVV), Indore. 

Mr. Mittal has rich experience of over 

20 years in credit risk, retail banking & 

operations, and technology & process 

management. Prior to joining HFS, 

he worked in various capacities for 

companies such as Reliance Money, 

IDFC First Bank, HDFC Bank and GE 

Money. 

Mr. Dheeraj Mittal 
Chief Operating Officer
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Mr. Hemanshu Parekh is a Chartered 

Accountant with a Diploma in 

Information Systems Audit (ISA) 

who currently works for HFS as the 

Head of Credit Underwriting. He 

began his banking career in 2005 

as a Credit Manager with HDFC 

Bank. During his 12-year tenure with 

HDFC Bank, he served in variety of 

roles, including Regional Manager 

for Mortgages, Unsecured Loans, 

and Product Risk Manager for Loan 

against Shares, Gold Loans, and 

Branch Banking/Offshore Product. 

Prior to joining HFS, he was with 

Ambit Finest Private Limited, where 

he was in-charge of the credit vertical.

Mr. Hemanshu Parekh 
Head – Credit Underwriting

Mr. Manish Odeka is in-charge of 

Enterprise Risk Management and 

developing and implementing the 

entire risk policy framework, credit 

underwriting and policy, operational 

risk, fraud control, collateral 

management, information security, 

and debt service management. He 

is a Chartered Accountant, and an 

Executive MBA from Singapore’s 

Emeritus Institute. Mr. Odeka has 17 

years of retail banking experience in 

the areas of risk, credit, collections, 

operations, product & strategy and 

financial planning. Prior to joining 

HFS, he held positions of leadership 

with several large NBFCs, including 

Reliance Money and Fullerton India 

Credit, and an initial stint at ICICI Bank.

Mr. Manish Odeka 
Chief Risk Officer
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To

The Members,

Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited (“the Company”)

The directors of the Company have pleasure in presenting the fifth Annual Report of the Company together with 

the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

	 FINANCIAL RESULTS AND HIGHLIGHTS:

	 	 Financial Summary

		�  The summary of the Company’s financial performance as on March 31, 2022 as compared to the financial 

year ended March 31, 2021 is given below:

(Amount in crore) 

(Except in EPS)

Particulars Financial  
Year ended   

March 31, 2022

Financial  
Year ended   

March 31, 2021

Total income 50.78 26.31

Total expenditure 57.31 24.38

Profit / (Loss) before taxation (6.52) 1.92

Provision for taxation (net) - 0.32

Profit / (Loss) for the year (6.52) 1.60

Add: Balance brought forward from previous year (3.64) (4.92)

Less: Transfer to Reserve Fund under section 45-IC of the RBI 

Act, 1934

- (0.32)

Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss (10.17) (3.64)

Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Basic (0.29) 0.20

Diluted (0.29) 0.20

	 	 Highlights of Financial Performance

		�  The Company earned a total income of ` 50.78 crore during the year under review, as compared to  

` 26.31 crore in the previous financial year ended March 31, 2021. The net loss of the Company for the 

aforesaid reporting period stood at ` 6.52 crore as against to net profit of ` 1.6 crore in the previous 

financial year ended March 31, 2021.

	 	 Appropriations

		�  In the view of the loss incurred during the reporting period, according to the provisions of section 45-IC 

of the RBI Act, 1934, the Company is not required to transfer any amount to reserves for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2022.

	 	 Dividend

		  The directors of the Company did not recommend any dividend for the year under review.

	 	 Capital Adequacy Ratio

		�  The Company’s total Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) as at March 31, 2022 stood at 83.05% as against 

46.70% as on March 31, 2021 of aggregate risk weighted assets on balance sheet and risk adjusted value 

of the off balance sheet items, which is well above the minimum regulatory requirement of 15%.
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	 INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:

	 	 Operational Highlights of the Year:

		  •	 Disbursement

			�   During the year under review, the Company disbursed ` 332 crore majorly comprising of secured 

and unsecured business loans to small businesses and Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME).

			�   The Company has continued its focus on expanding its distribution while augmenting its digital 

infrastructure.

		  •	 Assets under management

			�   The total asset under management (AUM) had increased to ` 419 crore from ` 181 crore due to 

continuous focus laid by the Company.

		  •	 Branches

			   As on March 31, 2022, the Company had network of 50 branches in 7 states.

		  •	 COVID-19 Pandemic

			�   Under the second wave of COVID-19 pandemic in April’21, which was considered to be severe than 

first wave, several parts of the Country had imposed lockdown in order to control the spread of 

COVID-19. There was a high level of uncertainty about the duration of the lockdown. In the second 

and third quarter of the financial year 2021-2022, the recovery in economy has emerged and saw 

an uptick in disbursements.

			�   Further in accordance with circulars issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) dated March 27, 

2020, April 17, 2020, May 23, 2020 and May 05, 2021 with regards to providing relief to borrowers 

on account of COVID-19 pandemic, the Company had offered moratorium to eligible borrowers 

in accordance with a policy on “EMI Moratorium and Interest Deferment due to COVID-19” duly 

approved by the Board of Directors (“the Board”).

		  •	 Digitalisation

			�   The Company continues to enhance its digital platform. The use of robotic process automation, 

artificial intelligence (AI) has been a key focus area to drive business growth, automate processes, 

improve productivity and enhance customer experience. The Company uses digital medium like 

whatsapp & cloud telephony as communication channels to interact with customers. The access to 

business applications is provisioned by an independent team and is provided based on the roles 

and responsibilities of the user.

			�   With this in mind, the Company has duly utilised the difficult period of pandemic to initiate the 

following digital initiatives:

			   1.	 Go- No Go application

				�    The Company’s proprietary unique “Go - No Go” rule engine facilitates customers to get the 

instant decision based on customer’s geo location, profile, banking and bureau behavior. This 

tool provides instant output of the loan amount eligibility.

			   2.	 Collection Application

				�    The collection android application is used by ‘on field’ collection agents. The collection 

application facilitates the collection agent to maintain follow-up trails and notifies the agent 

about the due dates. It facilitates collection of dues through various modes & real time update 

in loan management system.

				�    The Company’s steady investment in technology will definitely lead to inclusive growth and 

better utilisation of resources.
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		  •	 Compliance & Regulatory

			�   During the year under review, the Company continues to comply with all applicable laws, rules, 

circulars and regulations, including but not limited to the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial 

Company – Non Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company 

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“RBI Master Directions”), as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India 

(“RBI”) from time to time.

			�   The Board of Directors has framed various policies as applicable to the Company and periodically 

reviews the policies and approves amendments as and when necessary.

			�   A consolidated compliance certificate in respect of various laws, rules and regulations applicable 

to the Company is placed before the Board on a regular basis and reviewed by the Board.

			�   During the year, the employees in branches were trained in a systematic manner on various 

regulatory updates relevant for the business, know your customer regulations and fair practices 

code.

	 	 Change In Nature of Business

		  There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.

	 	 Material Changes and Commitments

		�  As per the RBI Master Directions, “Systemically important non-deposit taking non-banking financial 

company”, means a non-banking financial company not accepting/ holding public deposits and having 

total assets of ` 500 crore and above as shown in the last audited balance sheet.

		�  Between the end of the financial year March 31, 2022 and the date of the report the Company has 

achieved the milestone of crossing total assets of ` 500 crore. Accordingly, the Company had applied 

to RBI and received its approval to be categorised as “Systemically important non-deposit taking non-

banking financial company”(SI- ND- NBFC).

	 BUSINESS OUTLOOK & INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

	� The financial year 2021-22 was fairly a year of recovery from the adverse impacts of COVID-19 pandemic. 

The pandemic impacted the NBFCs operations, leading to decline in disbursements across the sectors. 

However, the support and focus of the Government through various liquidity measures such as repo rate cut, 

targeted long-term repo operations, special liquidity scheme and partial credit guarantee scheme, kept the 

sector afloat.

	� New business opportunities are expected to gain further momentum as COVID-19 lies low with near complete 

normalisation of economic activities. Steps taken earlier by NBFC’s to navigate the pandemic should hold 

them in good stead as measures like digitalisation across customer lifecycles, alternate data sources for 

underwriting, greater focus on asset quality plays out beneficially during this fiscal. NBFC’s are also well 

placed to leverage on investments done in the recent past on digital lending infrastructure.

	� Customer-centricity forms the core of the Company. The Company’s values have been guiding the strategies. 

Focusing on small-sized loans, the Company focused to transform the customer fulfilment through creating 

of a robust digital infrastructure which will complement our branches to offer the best-in-class credit offering 

to our customers. The Company intends to take the customer experience to a superior level.

	 CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE:

	 	 Authorized Share Capital

		�  During the year under review, pursuant to the approval of the members of the Company in their meeting 

held on May 04, 2021, the Company had increased authorised share Capital from ` 100,00,00,000/- 

(Rupees one hundred crore only) divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten crore) equity shares of ` 10/- 
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(Rupees ten only) to ̀  1000,00,00,000/- (Rupees one thousand crore only) divided into 100,00,00,000 

(One hundred crore) equity shares of ` 10/- (Rupees ten only).

		�  Further the authorised capital was reclassified vide ordinary resolution passed at the extra ordinary 

general meeting (“EGM”) held on March 04, 2022 as follows:

		  1.	 “Class A Equity Shares” means ordinary equity shares with voting & dividend rights.

		  2.	� “Class B Equity Shares” means equity shares having no voting rights but shall be entitled to same 

dividend rights as Class A equity shareholders i.e. dividend shall be paid in proportion to the paid-

up value of each share

		  3.	� “Class C Equity Shares” means equity shares having no voting rights but shall be entitled to same 

dividend rights as Class A equity shareholders i.e. dividend shall be paid in proportion to the paid-

up value of each share and shall have tag along right/drag along right as mentioned in Share 

Subscription Agreement.

		�  Consequently, the authorised share capital as on March 31, 2022 stood at ` 1000,00,00,000/- (Rupees 

One Thousand crore Only) comprising of;

		�  a.	� Class A Equity Shares of ` 994,00,00,000/-(Rupees nine hundred and ninety four crore only) 

divided into 99,40,00,000 (Ninety nine crore and forty lakh) Equity Shares of ` 10/- (Rupees ten 

only) each (“Class A Equity Shares”);

		  b.	� Class B Equity Shares of ` 3,00,00,000/- (Rupees three crore only)divided into 30,00,000 (Thirty 

lakh) Equity Shares of ` 10/- (Rupees ten only) each with differential voting rights (“Class B Equity 

Shares”) and

		  c.	� Class C Equity Shares of ` 3,00,00,000/-(Rupees three crore only) divided into 30,00,000 (Thirty 

lakh) Equity Shares of ` 10/- (Rupees ten only) each with differential voting rights (“Class C Equity 

Shares”)

	 	 Paid-Up Share Capital

		�  During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted 30,00,00,000 (Thirty crore) Class 

–A Equity Shares of `10/- (Rupees ten only) each and 30,00,000/- (Thirty lakh only) Class B Equity 

Shares of face value `10/- (Rupees ten only) each on partly paid up basis, Re.1/- (Rupee one) per class 

B equity shares paid on application. The details of which are provided hereunder:

Date of Issue Date of 
allotment

Method of 
allotment

Issue Price 
(In `)

Number 
of shares 
allotted

Number of 
shares or 
securities 
allotted to 

the promoter 
group

Amount of 
allotment  

(In `)

July 29, 20211 August 9, 
2021

Right Issue 10 

(Ten only)

10,00,00,000

 (Ten crore)

10,00,00,000

 (Ten crore)

100,00,00,000 
(One hundred 

crore only)

December 16, 
20212

December 
16, 2021

Right Issue 10 

(Ten only)

10,00,00,000

 (Ten crore)

10,00,00,000

 (Ten crore)

100,00,00,000 
(One hundred 

crore only)

December 17, 
20213

December 
17, 2021

Right Issue 10 

(Ten only)

10,00,00,000

 (Ten crore)

10,00,00,000

 (Ten crore)

100,00,00,000 
(One hundred 

crore only)

*March 17, 
20224

March 21, 
2022

Preferential

Allotment

10 

(Ten only)

30,00,000

(Thirty lakhs)

- 30,00,000

(Thirty lakhs)

1Date of offer letter, The Board had approved Right Issue at its meeting held on July 28, 2021.

		  2Date of offer letter, The Board had approved Right Issue at its meeting held on December 15, 2021

		  3Date of offer letter, The Board had approved Right Issue at its meeting held on December 15, 2021.
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		  4Date of offer letter, The Board had approved Preferential Issue at its meeting held on March 3, 2022

		�  *Partly Paid Shares -Re. 1/- per equity share which was paid on application; and balance to be paid on calls as and 

when called by the Board of the Company.

		�  Consequently, the paid-up share capital as on March 31, 2022 stood at ` 403,00,00,000/- (Rupees four 

hundred and three crore Only) divided into 40,00,00,000 (Forty lakhs) class A equity shares of ` 10/- 

(Rupees ten only) each fully paid up and 30,00,000 (Thirty lakhs) Class B equity shares having face 

value of ` 10/- (Rupees ten only) each and Re.1/- (Rupee one only) called and paid up.

	 	 Employee Stock Options

		�  The Company had introduced Hiranandani Financial Services (“HFS”) Employees Stock Option Scheme 

2020 (“ESOP 2020”) for eligible employees with a view to attract and retain talent, align individual 

performance with the Company objectives and promote increased participation by them in the growth 

of the Company.

		�  During the year under review, there was no change in (ESOP scheme). During the year under review, 

ESOP options were granted to the eligible employees of the Company.

		�  The information pertaining to ESOP in terms of Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and 

Debentures) Rules, 2014 is annexed with this report as Annexure-I.

	 	 During the year under review, Company has not issued any:

		  •	 Convertible Securities or

		  •	 Sweat Equity Shares or

		  •	 Debentures, bonds or any non-convertible securities or

		  •	 Warrants

	 CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES

	 During the year under review, the Company has obtained ratings from the following rating agencies:

Facilities Rating Agency Rating

Short term Bank Facilities Credit Analysis and Research Limited (CARE) CARE A2+/Stable

Long term Bank Facilities Credit Analysis and Research Limited(CARE) CARE A-/Stable

	� After the end of the financial year, the Company has also received rating of ‘CRISIL A/Stable’ from Credit 

Rating Information Services of India Limited (CRISIL),on its long term bank facilities in the month of May, 2022.

	 INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

	� During the year under review, the provisions of section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) and rules 

made thereunder were not applicable to the Company.

	 MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY:

	 	 Directors

		�  The composition of the Board is in accordance with the provisions of the Act. As on March 31, 2022, 

following were the directors on the Board of the Company:

Sr. 
No.

Director’s name Designation

1 Mr. Harsh S. Hiranandani Non-Executive Director

2 Ms. Neha S. Hiranandani Non-Executive Director

3 Mr. Gulab Singh Lodha Non-Executive Director

4 Mr. Utpal Hemendra Sheth Independent Director

5 Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director
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		�  During the year under review, members of the Company at the fourth Annual General Meeting held on 

September 27, 2021 had approved appointment of Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta as an independent director 

for a period of five years.

		�  During the year under review, the directors of the Company have complied with the Fit & Proper criteria 

set out in the RBI guidelines on Corporate Governance.

		�  None of the directors of the Company are disqualified as per the provisions of section 164(2) of the Act. 

The directors of the Company have made necessary disclosures, as required under various provisions 

of the Act.

	 	 Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”)

		�  There was no change in the KMPs of the Company during the year under review. As on March 31, 2022, 

the Company had the following KMPs:

Sr. 
No.

Name of KMP Designation

1 Mr. Uday Suvarna Chief Executive Officer

2 Mr. Vivekanand Ramachandran Chief Financial Officer

3 Mr. Ankit Kumar Jain Company Secretary

	 	� Changes In Management Of The Company, After The End Of The Year And Up To The Date of The 

Report:

		  i.	 Directors

			�   After the end of the financial year March 31, 2022 to which the report relates and the up to date 

of the report, Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta (DIN: 02895343), independent director, due to increase 

in his other commitments, had resigned from directorship of the Company with effect from May 

11, 2022. The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for his valuable contribution and the 

services rendered by Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta during his tenure as an independent director of the 

Company.

			�   The Company has appointed Mr. Prem Kumar Chophla (DIN: 09555408), retired Chief general 

manager at Reserve Bank of India, as an additional director (Independent) in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act, with effect from May 20, 2022 to hold office up to ensuing annual general 

meeting.

			�   The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Prem Kumar Chophla is a person of integrity, expertise and has 

relevant experience to serve as an independent director of the Company.

			�   Mr. Prem Kumar Chophla was appointed as an independent director for a term of 5 years i.e. May 

20, 2022 to May 19, 2027, subject to approval of members in ensuing annual general meeting of 

the Company. In terms of sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act. Appropriate 

resolution seeking approval of the shareholders has been included in the notice of the ensuing 

annual general meeting.

		  ii.	 Key Managerial Personnel

			�   After the end of the financial year March 31, 2022 and the up to date of the report, Mr. Ankit Kumar 

Jain, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company has resigned from the said post 

with effect from June 15, 2022.

			�   The Company has appointed Ms. Richa Arora as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

with effect from June 15, 2022.

			�   Mr. Vivekanand Ramachandran, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company has resigned from the 

said post with effect from August 30, 2022.
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			�   The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable contribution and services provided by 

Mr. Ankit Kumar Jain and Mr. Vivekanand Ramachandran during their tenure as Company Secretary 

& Compliance Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company respectively.

	 	 Declaration By Independent Directors

		�  The Company has received necessary declarations from independent directors of the Company that 

they meet the criteria of independence as laid down in section 149 of the Act and have complied with 

the Code for independent directors as prescribed in Schedule IV of the Act.

		�  The independent directors have also confirmed compliance with the provisions of rule 6 of Companies 

(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, relating to inclusion of their name in the 

databank of independent directors.

		�  Further, on an ongoing basis as a part of the agenda of meetings of the Board/ Committee(s), 

presentations are regularly made to the independent directors on various matters inter alia covering the 

Company’s businesses and operations, strategies, risk management framework, industry and regulatory 

updates and other relevant matters.

	 	 Board Meetings

		�  During the year under review, following 8 (Eight) board meetings were convened and held. The 

intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act:

Serial Number of Meeting Date of the Meeting

1/2021-22 April 19, 2021

2/2021-22 June 28, 2021

3/2021-22 July 28, 2021

4/2021-22 September 27, 2021

5/2021-22 October 29, 2021

6/2021-22 December 15, 2021

7/2021-22 February 2, 2022

8/2021-22 March 3, 2022

		�  The agenda for the meetings were circulated to the directors in timely manner. The minutes of the 

meetings of the Board were circulated amongst the members of the Board for their perusal.

		�  The attendance of the members of the Board at the meetings held during the year under review is as 

follows:

Sr. 

No.

Name of Director Designation No. of  Meetings held  

during the year/tenure  of  

Directors

No. of 

Meetings 

attended

1 Mr. Harsh S. Hiranandani Non-Executive Director 8 7

2 Ms. Neha S. Hiranandani Non-Executive Director 8 3

3 Mr. Gulab Singh Lodha Non-Executive Director 8 8

4 Mr. Utpal Sheth Independent Director 8 7

5 Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Independent Director 7 7

	 	 Committees

		�  During the year under review, the Company has constituted “Finance Committee” w.e.f. February 2, 

2022.
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		  As on March 31, 2022, the Company had the following committees:

Name of Committee Members Date(s) of Meeting

Investment Committee Mr. Harsh S. Hiranandani June 28, 2021

Mr. Uday Suvarna October 29, 2021

Mr. Vivekanand Ramachandran

Asset Liability Committee Mr. Uday Suvarna
Mr. Kartik Nagda
Mr. Vivekanand Ramachandran
Mr. Dheeraj Mittal
Mr. Manish Odeka

June 28, 2021
September 15, 2021
October 29, 2021
February 02, 2022

Risk Management Committee Mr. Uday Suvarna 
Mr. Kartik Nagda
Mr. Vivekanand Ramachandran
Mr. Dheeraj Mittal
Mr. Manish Odeka 
Mr. Harsh S. Hiranandani 
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta

June 28, 2021
September 15, 2021
October 29, 2021
February 02, 2022

ESOP Committee Mr. Harsh S. Hiranandani
Ms. Neha S. Hiranandani
Mr. G. S. Lodha

July 08, 2021

Finance Committee Mr. Harsh S. Hiranandani

Ms. Neha S. Hiranandani

Mr. G. S. Lodha

–

		  During the year under review;

		  a.	� A separate meeting of independent directors of the Company was held on March 14, 2022, wherein 

the performance of the non- independent directors, performance of the Board as a whole (including 

Committees) and the performance of the Chairman was reviewed in terms of the provision of the Act.

		  b.	� As per the requirement of the Act and /or RBI Master Directions, the Company was not required to 

constitute:

			   •	 Audit Committee or

			   •	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee or

			   •	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee or

			   •	 Stakeholder Relationship Committee.

	 	 Company’s Policy On Director’s Appointment And Remuneration

		�  During the year under review, the Company being unlisted private limited company, was not required to 

adopt policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration.

	 	 Board Evaluation

		�  During the year under review, the Company being unlisted private limited company was not required to 

include statement with respect to annual evaluation of Board, its committees and individual directors.

	 	 Particulars Of Employee Remuneration

		�  The Company, being unlisted private limited company, is not required to provide disclosure of 

remuneration details of employees pursuant to section 197 of the Act, read with rule 5 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

	 	 Directors’ Responsibility Statement

		�  The directors, based on the information/explanations/representations received from the operational 

management, in accordance with provisions of section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Act, confirm that:
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		  i.	� in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

		  ii.	� the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and loss of the Company for that 

period;

		  iii.	� the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

		  iv.	 the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

		  v.	� the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws including Secretarial Standards and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

	 	 Internal Financial Controls

		�  The Company’s internal control system is commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its 

operations. All transactions are properly authorised, recorded and reported to the Management. The 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and operating effectively as at March 31, 2022. The Company is following all the applicable 

Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements.

	 DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

	� During the year under review, the Company had no subsidiary, joint venture or associate company, hence the 

disclosure with respect to the same is not applicable.

	 DEPOSITS

	� The Company being a Non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (“ND-NBFC”) did not hold any 

public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has not accepted any deposits from the public during the 

year under review.

	 BORROWINGS

	� As on March 31, 2022, the total outstanding borrowings of the Company stood at `71,11,80,138/- which 

includes Vehicle loan from ICICI Bank Limited of `11,80,138/- and Unsecured & Interest free loan from 

directors of `71,00,00,000/-.

	 No interest payment or principal repayment of the term loans was due and unpaid as on March 31, 2022.

	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

	� The Company being a Non- Banking Financial Company, the provisions of section 186 of the Act, pertaining 

to granting of loans to any persons or bodies corporate, giving of guarantees or providing security in 

connection with loan to any other bodies corporate or persons and acquiring by way of subscription, 

purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, are not applicable to the Company.

	 The details of investments made by the Company are given in the Notes to the financial statements.

	 PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

	� All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year ended 

March 31, 2022 with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 

During the year under review, the Company had not entered into any contract/arrangement/ transaction 

with related parties which could be considered material. There are no transactions to be reported under 

section 188 (1) of the Act. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions, in Form AOC-2 is not 
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applicable to the Company. The directors draw attention to notes to the Financial Statements which sets out 

related party disclosures.

	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

	� Considering the net worth, turnover and net profit as per the last audited financial statement of the Company, 

the Company is not required to develop & implement CSR policy and spend any amount on CSR activities 

during the year under review, as per section 135 of the Act, read with the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

	� CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO:

	 A.	 Conservation of Energy-

		  (i)	 the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy :

			�   The operations of the Company are not energy-intensive. However, adequate measures have been 

initiated for conservation of energy;

		  (ii)	 the steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy:

			�   Though the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall explore 

alternative source of energy, as and when the necessity arises;

		  (iii)	the capital investment on energy conservation equipments – NIL.

	 B.	 Technology Absorption-

		  (i)	 the efforts made towards technology absorption –

			   The minimum technology required for the business has been absorbed.

		  (ii)	� the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import 

substitution- NIL

		  (iii)	� in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year)- NIL

			   (a)	 the details of technology imported – Not applicable

			   (b)	 the year of import – Not applicable

			   (c)	 whether the technology been fully absorbed – Not applicable

			   (d)	� if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof - 

Not applicable; and

		  (iv)	the expenditure incurred on Research and Development – NIL

	 C.	 Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo-

		�  During the year under review, the Company spent an amount equivalent of ` 96,402/- (for previous 

financial year ` 18,635/-)in foreign exchange towards acquisition of an internet domain. There were no 

foreign exchange earnings during the year under review.

	� RISK MANAGEMENT

	� Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy that seeks to minimise adverse 

impact on business objectives.

	� The Company has risk management policy in place which deals with identification of potential risks to 

which the Company may be exposed to and which can severely impact the organisation’s threat matrix and 

thereby take measures for control and mitigation of the impact of such risks on the Company.
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	� The Risk Management Committee overseas the risk management framework of the Company through 

regular and proactive intervention by identifying risks and formulation mitigations.

	� VIGIL MECHANISM

	� The Company for good governance has formulated a policy on vigil mechanism to address genuine concerns, 

if any of directors and employees. The Company has nominated Mr. Eusebius Pereira – Head- HR Business 

Partnering, as Vigilance Officer to whom directors and employees may approach for reporting their concerns 

or grievances and shall have direct access to him.

	 During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaints from its directors or employees.

	 MATERIAL ORDERS OF JUDICIAL BODIES /REGULATORS

	� There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators /courts/tribunals/statutory or quasi-

judicial body which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

	 Further, no penalties have been levied by RBI / any other regulators during the year under review.

	 AUDITORS:

	 	 Statutory Auditors

		�  Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Act and the rules made thereunder, the members at 

their fourth Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 27, 2021, had approved the appointment 

of M/s. V Sankar Aiyar & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 109208W) as the statutory auditors of the 

Company to fill the casual vacancy and for a term of five years, i.e. from the conclusion of third AGM till 

the conclusion of the eighth AGM.

		�  M/s. V Sankar Aiyar & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 109208W), has given a confirmation to the 

effect that they are eligible to continue with their appointment and that they have not been disqualified 

in any manner from continuing as statutory auditor of the Company.

	 	 Internal Auditors

		�  The Company had appointed M/s N. A. Shah Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants  

(FRN: 116560W/W100149), as an Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021-2022 to 

monitor key processes and operations and to suggest measures to strengthen the existing system, 

processes, and operations.

		�  The Company was not required to appoint cost auditor or secretarial auditor during the year under 

review.

	 STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT

	� The Auditors’ Report to the members for the year under review does not contain any qualification, reservation 

or adverse remark. The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and 

therefore do not call for any further clarifications under section 134(3)(f) of the Act.

	� During the year under review, no fraud was reported by the statutory auditor of the Company under section 

143(12) of the Act and no fraud was detected by the Company.

	� CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 

BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

	� During the year under review, there was no application made or pending against the Company under 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. There was no instance of one time settlement with any Bank/

Financial Institution in respect of loan taken by the Company, if any.
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	� ANNUAL RETURN (FORM MGT-7)

	� The annual return for the financial year 2021-2022, in Form MGT-7 as required under section 92(3) and 

section 134 of the Act shall be placed on the website of the Company viz. www.hfs.in

	� COST RECORDS

	� During the year under review, the Company was not required to maintain cost records as specified by the 

Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act.

	� POLICY FOR PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

	� The Company recognises its responsibility and continues to provide a safe working environment for 

women, free from sexual harassment and discrimination. The Company has in place a policy for prevention, 

prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace. Further, the Company has constituted an Internal 

Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013, where employees can register their complaints against sexual harassment. Appropriate 

reporting mechanisms are in place for ensuring protection against sexual harassment and the right to work 

with dignity.

	 During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaints in this regard.

	� HUMAN RESOURCES

	� Over the past 4 years the Company has steadily grown into a team of over 500 employees spread across 7 

states and 50 locations. Through the two waves of the COVID pandemic, the Company ensured the employees’ 

health & safety and the employees got themselves vaccinated against COVID-19 as an organisational priority, 

with over 90% staff fully vaccinated by September 2021.

	� The Company believes that an engaged workforce is a productive workforce and focuses on continuously 

improving engagement and efforts on areas viz. Communication, Recognition and Development.

	� During the year under review and upto the date of the report, the Company has achieved a significant scale 

up and continues to build programmes and processes which contributes towards creating organisational 

alignment and long term careers for the employees. The employees are and will always be the foundation 

upon which the Company’s growth story will be written.

	� As on March 31, 2022, the Company had a total headcount of 597employees.

	� RBI REGULATIONS

	� The Company has complied with the applicable regulations prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India, from 

time to time, as applicable to it.

	� OTHER DISCLOSURES

	� During the year under review, the Company has not obtained any registration / license/ authorisation, by 

whatever name called from any other financial sector regulators.

	� CAUTIONARY NOTE

	� Certain statements in this Report may be forward-looking and are stated as may be required by applicable 

laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those expressed or implied, depending upon economic 

conditions, Government policies and other incidental/related factors.

	� ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION

	� The directors express their sincere gratitude to the Reserve Bank of India, Ministry of Finance, Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies, National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Limited, other 



For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

Harsh S. Hiranandani 	 Gulab Singh Lodha
Place : Mumbai Director Director 
Date : September 30, 2022 DIN : 07661253 DIN : 08014426 
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government and regulatory authorities, lenders, financial institutions and the Company’s bankers for the on-

going support extended by them.

	� The directors also place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued support extended by the 

Company’s stakeholders and trust reposed by them in the Company. The directors sincerely appreciate 

the commitment displayed by the employees of the Company across all levels, resulting in a successful 

performance during the year.
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HFS ESOP 2020

Nature of Disclosures Particulars

Options approved to be issued as ESOPs 1,70,00,000

Total number of options (granted) in force at the 

beginning of the year

1,26,45,000

Options Granted during the year 1,80,000

Options Vested NIL

Options Exercised NIL

The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise 

of Options

NIL

Options Lapsed during the year 1,25,000

Exercise Price ` 10

Variation in terms of Options NIL

Money realised by exercise of Options; NIL

Total number of options (granted)  in force at the end of 

the year

1,25,20,000

Employee wise details of options granted during the 

year to:

i.	 Key Managerial Personnel

ii.	� any other employee who receives a grant of options 

in any one year of options amounting to five percent 

or more of total options granted during the year;

iii.	� identified employees who were granted options, 

during the year, equal to or exceeding one percent 

of the issued capital, excluding outstanding warrants 

and conversions, of the Company at the time of 

grant

Name Number of 
Options Granted

None

Name Number of 
Options Granted

None

Name Number of 
Options Granted

None
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 46-91



To the Members of Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited, 

which comprise Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Statement of 

Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India 

including Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and its loss, 

and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 

specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 

the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be made available to us after 

the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

identified above when it becomes available and in doing so consider whether other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated.

When we read the Board of Directors report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 

are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The 

Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 

to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Sec 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
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policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 

in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management.

•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 

that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 

that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Financial statements
46-91

Statutory Reports
31-44

Corporate Overview
02-29

47



Other matters

The financials statements of the company for the previous year ended March 31,2021 were audited by the 

predecessor M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP who had expressed unmodified opinion vide their report dated 

June 28,2021.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.	� As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a)	� We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the financial statements.

		�  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books

	 b)	 The financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

	 c)	� In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed 

under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 d)	� On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

	 e)	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

	 f)	� Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are 

not applicable to the Company since the company is not a public company as defined under section 

2(71) of the Act.

	 g)	� With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us:

		  i.	� The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as 

at March 31,2022.

		  ii.	� The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31st March 2022;

		  iii.	� There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,2022.

		  iv.	 (a)	� The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 

or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, 

including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

			   (b)	� The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)

HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED48



that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; and

			   (c)	� In our opinion and based on the audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe 

that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

		  v.	 The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For V Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 109208W)

Asha Patel
Partner 
Membership No: 166048
UDIN: 22166048AJHBTT9373

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 20, 2022
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ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL 

SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022.

3(i)	 (a)	 (A)	� The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

		  (B)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b)	� The Company has a program of verification of Property, Plant and Equipment to cover all the 

items at major locations in a phased manner over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is 

reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. Based on the 

information and explanation given to us and on verification of the records of the Company, the 

physical verification was conducted during the year and no material discrepancies were observed 

on such verification.

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanations given to us and based on verification of records 

provided to us, we report that, the company does not hold any immovable properties (other than 

properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour 

of the lessee) and hence provision of clause 3(i) (c ) are not applicable.

	 (d)	� The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 

or intangible assets or both during the year.

	 (e)	� As per the information and explanation provided to us no proceedings have been initiated or are 

pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

3(ii)	 (a)	� The company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the order 

is not applicable.

	 (b)	� The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial 

institutions on the basis of security of current assets namely financial asset and hence provision 

of clause 3(ii)(b) are not applicable.

3(iii)(a)	� The company being a Non-Banking Finance Company, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) are not 

applicable to the company.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the verification of the 

records and in our opinion the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the 

terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in nature of loans and guarantees 

provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

	 (c)	� The company being a Non-banking Finance company is in the business of granting loans and 

advances in the nature of loans. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest 

has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular except accounts which are overdue 

are classified as special mention accounts or non-performing assets as per RBI norms.

	 (d)	� The total amount overdue for more than ninety days is ̀  411.13 lakhs. Based on the information and 

explanations given to us and in our opinion reasonable steps have been taken by the company for 

recovery of principal and interest.

	 (e)	� The company being a Non-Banking Finance Company, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(e) are not 

applicable to the company.

	 (f)	� As per the information and explanation made available to us and in our opinion the company 

has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or 

without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Hence the provision of clause 3(iii)(f) are 

not applicable to the company.
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3(iv)	� The Company is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company to which the provisions of Sections 185 

and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable, and hence reporting under clause (iv) of CARO 

2020 is not applicable.

3(v)	�� The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 

or any other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. We are informed that no order 

has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of 

India or any court or other tribunal.

3(vi)	� The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by Central Government under Section 148(1) of 

the Companies Act,2013 for the company.

3(vii)	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given to us the Company is generally regular 

in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, 

income tax, service tax, sales tax, value added tax, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory 

dues as applicable to the Company with the appropriate authorities. We are informed that the 

provisions of Sales Tax, Customs Duty and Excise Duty are not applicable to the Company.

		�  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State 

Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears 

as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

3(vii)	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined 

by us, there are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales tax , service tax, duty of customs, duty 

of excise, Value added Tax and Goods and Services Tax that have not been deposited with the 

appropriate authorities on account of any dispute as at March 31,2022.

3(viii) �As per the information and explanation provided to us and as represented to us, there were no 

transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income 

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

3(ix)	 (a)	� According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit procedures, the 

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest 

thereon to any lender.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not been declared 

as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanations and records provided to us , the company has not 

obtained any term loans and hence the provision of clause 3(ix)(c ) is not applicable.

	 (d)	� According to the information and explanations provided to us, in our opinion the funds raised on 

short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

	 (e)	� According to the information and explanations provided to us and on examination of records, the 

company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence the provisions of 

clause 3(ix)(e ) are not applicable.

	 (f)	� According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any 

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence the provisions of clause 3(ix)(f) are not 

applicable.

3(x)	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the company 

has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments) hence the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) is not applicable.

	 (b)	� During the year the Company has issued 30,00,00,000 equity shares on rights basis to its 

existing equity shareholders for a consideration of ̀  3,00,00,00,000. The company has also made 

preferential allotment of 30,00,000 Class B equity shares for a consideration of ` 30,00,000 
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/- (partly paid upto Re 1 per share) and the requirements of section 62 of the Companies Act, 

2013 have been complied with, and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which 

funds were raised. The company has not issued any convertible debentures (fully or partially or 

optionally convertible) during the year.

3(xi)	 (a)	� During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company carried out in 

accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information 

and explanations given to us, no instance of fraud on or by the company has been noticed or 

reported.

	 (b)	� No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by us in Form 

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 

Government.

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any 

whistle blower complaints during the year.

3(xii)	� The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not 

applicable.

3(xiii)	�According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, all the transactions with 

the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable 

and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable 

accounting standards.

3(xiv)	(a)	� In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size 

and the nature of its business.

	 (b)	� We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company 

during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

3(xv)	� In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding 

or subsidiary companies or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

3(xvi)	(a)	� The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934 and it has obtained the registration.

	 (b)	� The company is in the business of and has carried on the business of Non- Banking Financial 

activities during with valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) obtained from the Reserve Bank of 

India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

	 (c)	� The company is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 

the Reserve Bank of India and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c ) of the Order is not 

applicable.

	 (d)	� In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 

3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.	� The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit mainly on account 

of expenditure incurred on expansion of business operations but the company had not incurred cash 

losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.	� There has been resignation of the predecessor statutory auditors of the Company during the year 

consequent to issue of Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory 

Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 

27,2021 by RBI. We have obtained no objection certificate from the predecessor auditor.
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xix.	� On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 

that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 

a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 

the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 

date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and 

when they fall due.

(xx)	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company being private limited 

company the provisions of section 135 of Companies act are not applicable to Company. Hence 

the provision of clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company being private limited 

company the provisions of section 135 of Companies act are not applicable to Company. Hence 

the provision of clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For V Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 109208W)

Asha Patel
Partner 
Membership No: 166048
UDIN: 22166048AJHBTT9373

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 20, 2022
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REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES 

PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Hiranandani Financial Services Private 

Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31st, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 

ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 

to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
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unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 

occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting 

may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 

or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 

at March 31, 2022 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 109208W)

Asha Patel
Partner 
Membership No: 166048
UDIN: 22166048AJHBTT9373

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 20, 2022
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

(Amount in `)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ Fund

Share Capital 3  4,00,30,00,000  1,00,00,00,000 

Reserves and Surplus 4  (8,68,19,588)  (3,26,50,347)

 3,91,61,80,412  96,73,49,653 

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 5  4,08,507  11,80,138 

Long-term provisions 6  2,81,95,886  1,20,66,013 

 2,86,04,393  1,32,46,151 

Current Liabilities

Short term Borrowings 7  71,07,71,631  1,11,13,81,218 

Trade payables 8

Micro and Small Enterprises  -  - 

Others  2,10,01,877  46,14,704 

Other Current Liabilities 9  12,30,80,758  7,55,92,948 

Short-term provisions 10  1,45,02,410  1,30,28,931 

 86,93,56,676  1,20,46,17,802 

Total  4,81,41,41,481  2,18,52,13,606 

ASSETS   

Non current assets

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) & Intangible Assets 11

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)  1,06,37,342  60,06,506 

Intangible assets  31,54,093  45,20,556 

Long-term loans and advances 12  3,67,76,09,162  1,11,36,68,142 

Other Non Current Assets 13  85,60,877  54,39,449 

 3,69,99,61,474  1,12,96,34,653 

Currents Assets

Current Investments 14  45,00,00,000  18,00,00,000 

Cash and bank balances 15  5,87,52,440  10,59,30,464 

Short-Term Loans and Advances 16  55,15,01,695  72,61,87,492 

Other current assets 17  5,39,25,872  4,34,60,997 

 1,11,41,80,007  1,05,55,78,953 

Total  4,81,41,41,481  2,18,52,13,606 

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements The accompanying notes are an integral 

part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
Firm Regn. No. 109208W

Asha Patel Harsh S. Hiranandani Gulab Singh Lodha 
Partner Director Director 
Membership No: 166048 DIN : 07661253 DIN : 08014426 
Place	 :	Mumbai
Date	 :	May 20, 2022

Uday Suvarna Vivekanand Ramachandran Ankit Kumar Jain
CEO CFO	 Company Secretary

M No. A21893
Place	 :	Mumbai
Date	 :	May 20, 2022
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(Amount in `)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the 
year ended 

March 31, 2022

For the 
year ended 

March 31, 2021

INCOME :-

Revenue from operations 18  46,41,75,124  24,73,30,188 

Other income 19  4,37,05,479  1,57,79,923 

Total Income  50,78,80,603  26,31,10,111 

  

EXPENSES :-

Finance Cost 20  5,47,169  2,88,423 

Employee Benefit Expenses 21  37,80,45,882  17,48,89,697 

Administrative and Other Expenses 22  15,24,43,396  4,71,54,815 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 11  1,06,47,798  56,75,242 

Provisions & Write Offs 23  3,14,75,061  1,58,77,679 

Total Expenses  57,31,59,305  24,38,85,856 

Profit Before Tax  (6,52,78,701)  1,92,24,255 

Provision for Taxation  -  32,08,910 

Profit After Tax  (6,52,78,701)  1,60,15,345 

Earning Per Share -  Basic and Diluted  (0.29)  0.20 

(Nominal Value of ` 10/- per share)

[Refer Note 26]

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements The accompanying notes are an integral 

part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
Firm Regn. No. 109208W

Asha Patel Harsh S. Hiranandani Gulab Singh Lodha 
Partner Director Director 
Membership No: 166048 DIN : 07661253 DIN : 08014426 
Place	 :	Mumbai
Date	 :	May 20, 2022

Uday Suvarna Vivekanand Ramachandran Ankit Kumar Jain
CEO CFO	 Company Secretary

M No. A21893
Place	 :	Mumbai
Date	 :	May 20, 2022
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(Amount in `)

Particulars For the 
year ended 

March 31, 2022

For the 
year ended 

March 31, 2021

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:-

Profit before tax  (6,52,78,701)  1,92,24,255 

Adjusted for:  2,93,87,732  1,87,53,448 

Depreciation and amortisation  1,06,47,798  56,75,242 

Profit on sale of mutual fund  (1,68,39,386)  (56,06,360)

Interest income on fixed deposit  (15,99,583)  (18,32,656)

Provision & write offs  3,14,75,061  1,58,77,679 

Finance cost  5,47,169  2,88,423 

Provision for gratuity  16,17,863  21,13,413 

Provision for compensated absences  35,38,811  22,37,707 

Operating profit before working capital changes  (3,58,90,969)  3,79,77,702 

Adjusted for operating assets and liabilities

(Increase) in loans and advances  (2,40,17,44,251)  (21,20,20,443)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables  1,63,87,173  39,60,370 

Increase in Other current liabilities  4,74,87,810  5,94,63,909 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other provisions  (79,18,923)  (61,66,821)

(Increase) in Other assets  (1,04,64,875)  (2,78,86,766)

Cash used in Operations  (2,39,21,44,037)  (14,46,72,049)

Taxes refunded/(paid)  93,67,601  (75,91,741)

Net cash used in operating activities                                 (A)  (2,38,27,76,436)  (15,22,63,790)

Cash flow from investing activities:-

Purchase of PPE  (1,39,12,171)  (66,03,548)

Net Purchase of mutual fund units  (25,31,60,614)  (17,43,93,641)

Interest on investments  15,99,583  18,32,656 

Net Cash from/(used in) investing activities                      (B)  (26,54,73,202)  (17,91,64,532)

Cash flow from financing activities:-

Proceeds from issue of equity shares  3,00,30,00,000  25,00,00,000 

Net Proceeds from short term borrowings  (40,06,09,587)  - 

Investment in FD with maturity more than 3 months upto 12 months  (12,175)  (14,205)

Long term borrowings  (7,71,631)  (15,92,727)

Finance cost  (5,47,169)  (2,94,805)

Net cash from financing activities                                         (C)  2,60,10,59,438  24,80,98,263 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (4,71,90,199)  (8,33,30,059)

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents  10,56,91,259  18,90,21,317 

Closing  balance of cash and cash equivalents  5,85,01,060  10,56,91,259 

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand  -  - 

With banks -  in current account  1,83,61,060  58,91,259 

                    -  in deposit account  4,01,40,000  9,98,00,000 

 5,85,01,060  10,56,91,259 
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Note:

1	 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Accounting 

Standard -3 “cash flow statement” as notified in the companies (Accounting Standards) rules notified from 

time to time.

2	 The previous year’s figures have been regrouped, rearranged, restated and reclassified wherever necessary.

3	 Bracket indicates cash outflow.	

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

As per our report of even date
For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
Firm Regn. No. 109208W

Asha Patel Harsh S. Hiranandani Gulab Singh Lodha 
Partner Director Director 
Membership No: 166048 DIN : 07661253 DIN : 08014426 
Place	 :	Mumbai
Date	 :	May 20, 2022

Uday Suvarna Vivekanand Ramachandran Ankit Kumar Jain
CEO CFO	 Company Secretary

M No. A21893
Place	 :	Mumbai
Date	 :	May 20, 2022
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

1	 COMPANY OVERVIEW

	� Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited (formerly known as Dobra Finance Private Limited 

(CIN:U65999MH2017PTC291060) ('the Company') was incorporated on February 10, 2017. The name of the 

Company was changed and the fresh certificate of incorporation with the new name was received February 

7, 2019. The Company had received the Certificate of Registration (COR) dated June 7, 2018 from the Reserve 

Bank of India (“RBI”) to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution and thereafter a fresh 

COR dated February 22, 2019 was received from RBI pursuant to change in the name of the Company. The 

Company is presently categorised as Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking non-banking financial 

company (NBFC-ND-NSI) in accordance with the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India.

	� The Company is engaged in the business of providing loans to small businesses including micro, small and 

medium enterprises, personal loans and loans for onward lending to borrowers in small businesses/MSME 

segment, Personal loan, Consumer loan and micro-finance loan.

2	 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

	� The financial statements have been prepared and presented under historical cost convention and accrual 

basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated, and in accordance with the generally accepted accounting 

principles in India (Indian GAAP) and conform to the statutory requirements, circulars, regulations and 

guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time to the extent they have an impact on the 

financial statements and current practices prevailing in India. The financial statements have been prepared 

to comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards ("AS") notified under Section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable. 

The Company follows the prudential norms for income recognition, asset classification and provisioning as 

prescribed by the RBI for NBFC-ND-NSI.

b.	 Use of estimates

	� The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Indian GAAP requires management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 

year, reported balance of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of 

financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates 

is recognised prospectively in current and future years.

c.	 Revenue recognition:

	� Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is possible that economic benefits will flow to the Company and 

revenue can be reliabliy measured.

	 (i)	� Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on an accrual basis. Interest income on 

Non-Performing Assets (NPA) is recognised as per the RBI Guidelines. Interest accrued and not realised 

before the classification of the asset as an NPA is reversed in the month in which the loan is classified 

as NPA.

	 (ii)	 Processing fees are recovered and recognised at the time of disbursement of loan / receipt.

	 (iii)	� Interest income on other deposits are recognised on a time proportion basis. Income from dividend is 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive is established.

	 (iv)	� Profit / Loss on disposal of an investment is recognised at the time of such sale / redemption and is 

computed based on average carrying amount of the investment.

	 (v)	� Other Charges/penal interest are recognised on receipt basis.

d.A.	Property, Plant & Equipments:

	� Property, Plant & Equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 
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any. The cost includes non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses incurred directly 

related to the acquisition and installation of the asset. Subsequent expenditure after their purchase / 

completion is capitalised, only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such 

asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as 

on balance sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. Advance given towards acquisition of Property, 

Plant & Equipments (PPE) outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as long terms loans and 

advances.

	� The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each financial year end 

and adjusted prospectively

d.B.	Intangible Assets:

	 i.	 Recognition and measurement

		�  Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such intangible 

assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 

impairment losses.

	 ii.	 Subsequent expenditure

		�  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in 

the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated 

goodwill and brands, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when it is incurred.

e.	 Impairment of Assets

	� The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 

based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an 

individual asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net 

selling price and value in use. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into 

account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the 

asset.

f.	 Depreciation and amortisation

	 i.	 Property, Plant & Equipments:

		�  Depreciation on Propety, Plant & Equipments is provided on pro-rata basis (i.e. from the date on which 

the asset is ready to use) on Written Down Value (WDV) method. Depreciation is provided over the 

useful lives of the asset, as estimated by the management. If the management's estimate of the useful life 

of a Assets at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent review 

is shorter than that envisaged, depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on the management's 

estimate of the useful life / remaining useful life. Pursuant to this policy, the estimated useful life of 

assets are as follows:

Property, Plant & Equipments  
description

Management estimate of useful life Useful life as per schedule II

Vehicles 8 8

Office Equipment 5 5

Computers & Printers 3 3

Furniture & Fixtures 10 10

		�  Depreciation on PPE is provided on written down value method at the rates and in the manner 

prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 over their useful life as specified in Schedule II to 

the Companies Act 2013.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Financial statements
46-91

Statutory Reports
31-44

Corporate Overview
02-29

61



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

	 ii.	 Intangible assets:

		�  Intangible assets include: customizations, enhancements in the software procurred on usage rights 

model & which are carried at cost of developments less accumulated amortisation and amortized on an 

Straight Line Method (SLM) basis over the period not exceeding 2 years. Trademark/LOGO are carried 

over cost of developments less accumulated amortization and amortized on SLM basis over 4 years.

g.	 Borrowing costs

	� Borrowing costs include interest and ancillary costs that the Company incurs in connection with the 

borrowings. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the 

acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss at the time of availment of 

the loan unless it is incurred on periodic basis.

h.	 Foreign currency transactions

	� Foreign currency transactions are recorded into Indian rupees using the actual exchange rates prevailing at 

the date of the transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during 

the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 

in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that 

date. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions during the year and on restatement of 

monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i.	 Investments

	� On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly 

attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage and fees.

	� Investments maturing within three months from the date of acquisition are classified as cash equivalents if 

they are readily convertible into cash. Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not 

more than a year from the date of acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are 

classified as long-term investments. However, that part of long term investments which is expected to be 

realised within 12 months after the reporting date is also presented under 'current assets' as “current portion 

of long term investments”. Long-term investments (including current portion thereof) are carried at cost 

less any other-than-temporary diminution in value, determined separately for each individual investment. 

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value.

	� Any reductions in the carrying amount and any reversals of such reductions are charged or credited to the 

Statement of Profit and Loss."

j.	 Employee Benefits

	 Defined contribution plan

	� The Company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plan and are charged 

as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when the 

services are rendered by the employees.

	 Defined benefit plan

	� For defined benefit plan in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using 

the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they occur. 

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise 

is amortized on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement 

benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any 

asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds 

and reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED62



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

	 Other Employee Benefits:

	 Compensated absences

	� Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months 

from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is 

measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected 

to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

	� Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from 

the end of the year are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially 

determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

	 Employee stock options:

	� Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at 

the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.The fair value determined at the grant date of the 

equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on 

the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in 

equity.

k.	 Operating leases

	� Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with 

the lessor are recognised as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the lease term.

l.	 Earnings per share

	� The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with AS 20-Earnings Per 

Share. Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing net profit / loss attributable to the equity 

share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

m.	 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

	� Income-tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the year determined in accordance with the 

income-tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between 

accounting income and taxable income for the period). Income-tax expense is recognised in statement of 

profit and loss except that tax expense relating to items recognised directly in reserves is also recognised 

in those reserves. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the 

taxation authorities, using the applicable tax rates and tax laws. Deferred tax is recognised in respect of 

timing differences between taxable income and accounting income i.e. differences that originate in one 

year and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent years. The deferred tax charge or credit and 

the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates and tax laws that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only 

to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there 

is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised 

only if there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income 

will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is 

reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

n.	 Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

	� A provision is recognised when there is present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 

made. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither 

recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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o.	 Operating cycle:

	� Assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current based on the operating cycle which has been 

estimated to be 12 months. All assets and liabilities which are expected to be realised and settled within a 

period of 12 months from the date of Balance sheet have been classified as current and other assets and 

liabilities are classified as non-current.

p.	 Classification and provisioning for loan portfolio:

	 (a)	 Asset classification:

		  Loans are classified as standard and non-performing assets in accordance with following policy:

Classification Arrear Period

Standard Assets No overdues/ Overdues upto 90 days

Non Performing Assets:

Sub-standard Assets Overdue more than 90 days and not more than 1 year

Doubtful assets 

more than 1 year and upto 2 years

more than 2 years and upto 3 years

Overdue for more than 3 years

Loss Assets Upon identification

	 (b)	 'Provisioning norms followed by Company:

		  i)	� Loans are provided for/written off, in accordance with the policy as per the table below, subject 

to the minimum provision required as per Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically 

Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016:

Category Product-Secured Loans Product-UnSecured Loans

Standard Assets General provision of 0.25% of the 

total outstanding		

‘General provision of 0.25% of the 

total outstanding	

Sub-standard Assets

10% of the total outstanding Depending upon the ageing in 

the sub-standard category

1.	 10% of the total outstanding  

(91 to 120 DPD)

2.	 50% of the total outstanding  

(121 to 150 DPD)

3.	 100% of the total outstanding  

(151 to 180 DPD)

Doubtful assets On Secured portion depending 

upon the ageing in the doubtful 

category

Not Applicable- since fully 

provided on 180 DPD

1.	 Up to 1 yr – 20%

2.	 1 to 3 yrs – 30%

3.	 Above 3 yrs – 50%

4.	 100% of the extent to which 

the advance is not covered 

by the realisable value of the 

security

Loss Assets 	 100% on identification 100% on identification

			�   Further, the Company can take accelerated provisions sufficient to cover the outstanding dues, 

much ahead on DPD string in exceptional instances of Borrower’s death / terminal illness or fraud 

assessed and/or in cases where probability to recover dues are minimal.
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		  ii)	 Write-offs

			�   The Company has a policy of writing off unsecured loans, once the overdue period on such loans 

is more than 180 days. Further, the Company can take accelerated write-offs, much ahead on DPD 

string in exceptional instances of Borrower’s death / terminal illness or fraud assessed and/or in 

cases where probability to recover dues are minimal.

3 SHARE CAPITAL

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Authorised

1,00,00,00,000 (P.Y.10,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each as per the 
following:

 10,00,00,00,000  1,00,00,00,000 

Class A (Ordinary Eq. Shares)- 99,40,00,000 Shares of ` 10/- Each, 
(PY- 10,00,00,000 of ` 10/- Each)

Class B- 30,00,000 Shares of ` 10/- Each

Class C- 30,00,000 Shares of ` 10/- Each

 10,00,00,00,000  1,00,00,00,000 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Share Capital:-

Class A Eq Shares: 40,00,00,000  (P.Y. 10,00,00,000)Equity Shares of  
` 10 each fully paid up

 4,00,00,00,000  1,00,00,00,000 

Class B Eq Shares: 30,00,000  (P.Y. Nil) Equity Shares of ` 10 each.  
`1/- called & paid up

 30,00,000 

Total  4,00,30,00,000  1,00,00,00,000 

a)	 Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding  at the end of the reporting period

(Amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

No. of Shares ` No. of Shares `

Equity Shares of ` 10 each

At the beginning of the year  10,00,00,000  1,00,00,00,000  7,50,00,000  75,00,00,000 

Issued during the year  30,30,00,000  3,00,30,00,000  2,50,00,000  25,00,00,000 

Outstanding at the end of the year  40,30,00,000 4,00,30,00,000  10,00,00,000  1,00,00,00,000 

b)	 Details of Shareholding more than 5% Shares in the Company

(Amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

No of Shares Amount % No of Shares Amount %

Equity Shares of ` 10 

each

Ms. Neha Hiranandani 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 24.81 5,00,00,000 50,00,00,000 50 

Mr. Harsh Hiranandani 30,00,00,000 3,00,00,00,000 74.44 5,00,00,000 50,00,00,000 50 

Total 40,00,00,000 4,00,00,00,000 99.26 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 100 
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c)	 Details of promoter shareholding:

(Amount in `)

Promoter Name	 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

No of Shares % of 
shareholding

% change 
during the 

year

No. of Shares % of  
shareholding

%  change 
during 

the year

Ms. Neha Hiranandani 10,00,00,000 24.8% 100% 5,00,00,000 50.0% 33%

Mr. Harsh Hiranandani 30,00,00,000 74.4% 500% 5,00,00,000 50.0% 33%

Total 40,00,00,000 99.3% 300% 10,00,00,000 100.0% 33%

d)	 Terms / Rights / preferences attached to Equity Class of shares:-

	� The Company’s paid-up capital is divided into Class A (Ordinary equity shares) and Class-B equity shares 

of face value of ` 10 each. Each Class A holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held and 

each share has the same dividend rights. Class-B equity share does not contain any voting rights but shall 

be entitled to same dividend rights as Class A equity shareholders.

	� Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, all amounts available for distribution out of 

the assets of the Company to the holders of its Share Capital, whether such assets are capital, surplus or 

earnings, subject to applicable Law, shall be distributed in the order as prescribed in Articles of Association 

of the Company.

	� The Company has neither issued any bonus shares nor issued any shares for consideration other than cash 

and there is no buy back of shares since it's inception.

4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(Amount in `)

RESERVES AND SURPLUS As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

a. Statutory reserves:

Balance at the beginning of the year  37,79,840  5,76,771.05 

Add: Transferred from  surplus in statement of profit & loss  
(Refer note 33c)

 -    32,03,069 

(A)  37,79,840  37,79,840 

b. Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss:

Opening balance  (3,64,30,187)  (4,92,42,463)

(+) Net profit/(Net loss) for the current year  (6,52,78,701)  1,60,15,345 

Less : Appropriations transfer to statutory reserve (Refer note 33c)  -    (32,03,069)

(B)  (10,17,08,888)  (3,64,30,187)

b. Employee Stock Option Plan Reserves

Opening balance

(+) Addition for the current year  1,11,09,460 

Less : utilisation during the year

(C)  1,11,09,460 

	 Total (A+B+C)  (8,68,19,588)  (3,26,50,347)
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5 LONG TERM BORROWING

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Secured Term Loan- From bank  4,08,507  11,80,138 

Total  4,08,507  11,80,138 

Secured term loans, are vehicle loans taken from ICICI Bank, secured 
against the respective vehicle for which the loan has been taken

Term loan is repayable in 36 to 60  monthly instalment. Interest varies 
from 8.5% to 9%  per annum

Maturity Profile  Amount  Amount 

- Amount due within One year  7,71,631  13,81,218 

- Amount due between one year to three years  4,08,507  11,80,138 

Total 11,80,138 25,61,356 

* Company has not availed moratorium, in EMI repayments on vehicle loans, as per the RBI circular RBI/2019-

20/186 DOR.No.BP.BC.47/21.04.048/2019-20 & RBI/2019-20/244 DOR.No.BP.BC.71/21.04.048/2019-20

6 LONG TERM PROVISION

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Provision for standard assets  1,43,98,407  26,24,816 

Provision for standard assets-restructured  31,89,458  27,93,780 

Provision for non performing loans  58,75,065  35,23,020 

Provision for gratuity (Refer note 35.2)  47,32,956  31,24,398 

Total  2,81,95,886  1,20,66,013 

7 SHORT TERM BORROWING

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Loan from Director - unsecured loan (Refer note 28)  71,00,00,000  1,11,00,00,000 

(Short term loan upto 1 year at Nil interest rate)

Current maturities of long term borrowings  7,71,631  13,81,218 

Total  71,07,71,631  1,11,13,81,218 

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Financial statements
46-91

Statutory Reports
31-44

Corporate Overview
02-29

67



8 TRADE PAYABLE

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Micro and small enterprises (Refer note 25)  -    -   

Others  2,10,01,877  46,14,704 

Total  2,10,01,877  46,14,704 

Undisputed  2,10,01,877  46,14,704 

MSME  -    -   

Others  2,10,01,877  46,14,704 

-Less than 1 year  2,10,01,877  46,14,704 

-1-2 Years  -    -   

-2-3 Years  -    -   

-More than 3 years  -    -   

Disputed  -    -   

MSME  -    -   

Others  -    -   

-Less than 1 year  -    -   

-1-2 Years  -    -   

-2-3 Years  -    -   

-More than 3 years  -    -   

Total  2,10,01,877  46,14,704 

9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Statutory dues payable  1,57,68,840  49,30,735 

Employee related payables  55,46,924  31,23,000 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  5,573  12,056 

EMI/Fee received in advance  65,05,755  27,74,043 

Book overdraft  5,86,77,434  5,24,22,458 

Accrued expenses  3,65,76,232  1,23,30,656 

Total  12,30,80,758  7,55,92,948 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)
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10 SHORT TERM PROVISION

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Provision for standard asset*  45,82,499  42,66,469 

Provision for standard assets-restructured  7,90,835  4,55,315 

Provision for gratuity (Refer note 35.2)  20,629  11,324 

Provision for compensated absences  76,78,887  41,40,076 

Provision for leave travelling allowances  14,29,560  9,26,192 

Provision for taxation  -    32,08,910 

Rent equalisation reserve  -    20,645 

Total  1,45,02,410  1,30,28,931 

* Including floating provision as on March 31, 2022 - ` 86 Lakhs 

* Including floating provision as on March 31, 2021 - ` 25 Lakhs 
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12 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

A) Financing Activities:  

Standard & considered good #

Secured loans*  3,57,69,54,890  1,04,54,27,075 

Unsecured loans  5,10,90,289  3,24,36,918 

Substandard & considered doubtful #*

Secured loans*  4,07,70,911  2,43,11,392 

Unsecured loans  3,42,183  21,83,519 

(A)  3,66,91,58,273  1,10,43,58,904 

# Represents standard assets in accordance with the Company’s asset 

classification policy (Refer note 2(p)(a))

#*  Represents Non-performing assets in accordance with the Company’s 

asset classification policy(Refer note 2(p)(a))

* Secured against tangible assets in the form of property/receivables

B) Other than Financing Activities:

Unsecured & considered good

Advance Income Tax (Tax deducted at source)  51,40,469  91,63,708 

Prepaid expenses  11,22,228  1,45,531 

Advance to Vendor  21,88,192  -   

(B)  84,50,889  93,09,238 

Total (A+B)  3,67,76,09,162  1,11,36,68,142 

13 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Unsecured & considered good   

Security deposits  85,60,877  54,39,449

Total  85,60,877  54,39,449 
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14 INVESTMENTS

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Investment in mutual fund ( Short term - Quoted)  45,00,00,000  18,00,00,000 

130499.97 units in Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight fund-Direct Growth 

Plan, (Market value- 15,00,33,907.91, Cost- 15,00,00,000)

 

17,45,332.751 units in ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund Direct plan,(Market 

value- 20,01,38,702.82, Cost- 20,00,00,000)

35176.09 units in SBI Low duration Fund Regular growth plan,(Market 

value- 10,01,50,739.98, Cost- 10,00,00,000)

Total  45,00,00,000  18,00,00,000 

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

A) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

a. Balances with banks

- In Current account  1,83,61,060  58,91,259 

b. Cash on hand  -    -   

c. Fixed deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months  4,01,40,000  9,98,00,000 

(A)  5,85,01,060  10,56,91,259 

B) Other Bank Balances

a. Fixed deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but upto 

12 Months

 2,51,380  2,39,205 

(Fixed deposit is lien marked for corporate credit card)

(B)  2,51,380  2,39,205 

Total (A+B)  5,87,52,440  10,59,30,464 
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16 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

A) Financing Activities:

Standard & considered good #

Secured loans*  48,76,75,054  67,10,48,990 

Unsecured loans  4,00,02,458  3,45,10,105 

Interest receivable on loans  69,11,123  9,43,689 

(A)  53,45,88,635  70,65,02,784 

# Represents standard assets in accordance with the Company’s asset 

classification policy (Refer note 2(p)(a))

* Secured against tangible assets in the form of property/receivables

B) Other than Financing Activities:

Unsecured & considered good

Security deposits  -    7,50,600 

Withholding  and other taxes receivables  1,03,22,797  1,56,67,160 

Advances to vendors  15,10,720  2,36,937 

Prepaid expenses  48,55,109  29,51,332 

Advance to employees  2,24,434  78,679 

(B)  1,69,13,060  1,96,84,708 

Total (A+B)  55,15,01,695  72,61,87,492 

17 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Receivable from portfolio servicing partner (Refer Note 38)  58,39,755  2,46,45,612 

Other receivables  17,70,004  5,90,000 

Interest accrued but not due  4,61,78,679  1,81,65,816 

Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit  1,37,434  59,569 

Total  5,39,25,872  4,34,60,997 

18 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount in `)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

-Interest income on loans  37,23,19,431  22,46,73,484 

Other operating revenues:

-Processing fee income  7,86,56,192  1,88,52,070 

-Other charges  1,31,99,501  38,04,634 

Total  46,41,75,124  24,73,30,188 
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19 OTHER INCOME

(Amount in `)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Gain from sale of current investments  1,68,39,386  56,06,360 

Interest on fixed deposits  15,99,583  18,32,656 

Interest on commercial papers  53,94,050  36,01,000 

Website display charges  1,80,00,000  45,00,000 

Interest on Income Tax refund  7,33,700  57,410 

Other miscellaneous income  11,38,760  1,82,497 

Total  4,37,05,479  1,57,79,923 

20 FINANCE COST

(Amount in `)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Interest on Term Loan (Vehicle Loans)  5,47,169  2,88,423 

Total  5,47,169  2,88,423 

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Amount in `)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Salaries, bonus & Commission  33,98,93,394  15,58,84,162 

Contribution to PF and other funds  1,47,62,952  72,18,435 

Staff welfare expenses  66,95,777  72,33,815 

Gratuity expense (Refer note 35)  16,17,863  21,13,413 

Compensated absences  39,66,436  24,39,872 

Employee Stock Option Plan  1,11,09,460  -   

Total  37,80,45,882  17,48,89,697 
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22 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in `)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Auditor remuneration (Refer note 24)  9,75,000  9,70,000 

Advertisement & sales promotion  1,00,69,211  9,52,875 

Commission expenses  6,11,834  13,56,148 

Electricity charges  38,04,904  12,83,831 

Insurance  29,47,869  16,50,079 

Information technology expenses  75,84,530  56,78,719 

Legal & professional charges  1,21,82,924  45,55,632 

Credit verification charges  4,45,34,278  1,04,30,385 

Office expenses  67,82,353  35,10,991 

Postage & telephones  37,90,444  9,02,696 

Printing & stationery  23,15,377  5,86,726 

Rates & taxes  3,05,59,585  33,89,760 

Rent for premises  1,35,85,824  71,57,882 

Repairs & maintenance:  10,11,007  2,56,947 

Security expenses  3,03,384  2,55,486 

Travelling, lodging, boarding & conveyance expenses  1,11,21,596  39,69,120 

Miscellaneous expenses  2,63,276  2,47,538 

Total  15,24,43,396  4,71,54,815 

23 PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS

(Amount in `)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Provision/(Excess Reversal) for standard assets  1,28,20,820  60,60,889 

Provision for NPA  23,52,045  35,23,020 

Write offs  1,63,02,196  62,93,770 

Total  3,14,75,061  1,58,77,679 

24 PAYMENTS TO AUDITORS

(Amount in `)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Statutory Audit  7,00,000  7,50,000 

Tax Audit  1,50,000  1,00,000 

Other certification  1,25,000  1,20,000 

Total  9,75,000  9,70,000 
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25 DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES AS PER MSMED ACT, 2006

There are no delays in payments to micro and small enterprises as required to be disclosed under ‘The Micro, 

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006’. The determination has been made to the extent such 

parties were identified by the management based on the information available and are relied upon by the 

statutory auditors (Previous Year Nil).

26 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Net profit for the year  (6,52,78,701)  1,60,15,345 

Net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders  (6,52,78,701)  1,60,15,345 

Weighted average number of equity shares  22,24,74,795  8,10,95,890 

Par value per share  10  10 

Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted  (0.29)  0.20 

Note: No diluted EPS in CY as company has incurred loss.				  

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account and not provided

 4,46,000  -   

Undrawn committed sanctions to borrowers  19,82,56,716  8,19,04,813 

Total  19,87,02,716  8,19,04,813 

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Names of related parties and nature of relationship

(Amount in `)

Name Nature Of Relationship

Harsh Hiranandani Person exercising significant influence 

Neha Hiranandani

Uday Suvarna Key managerial personnel (KMP) - Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

Vivekanand Ramachandran. Key managerial personnel (KMP) - Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

Ankit Kumar Jain Key managerial personnel (KMP) - Company Secretary 
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(Amount in `)

Transactions with the Related Parties For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Equity Infusion and Allotment of Shares

Harsh Hiranandani  2,00,00,00,000  12,50,00,000 

Neha Hiranandani  1,00,00,00,000  12,50,00,000 

Uday Suvarna  30,00,000  -   

Loan received

Harsh Hiranandani  60,00,00,000  -   

Loan repayment

Harsh Hiranandani  1,00,00,00,000  -   

Remuneration to KMPs'*  3,99,28,225  2,32,52,372 

Total  4,64,29,28,225  27,32,52,372 

* Remuneration to KMPs does not include provision for gratuity and compensated absences.

(Amount in `)

Closing Balance of Related Parties Receivables / (Payables) As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Loan repayable

Harsh Hiranandani  71,00,00,000  1,11,00,00,000 

Total  71,00,00,000  1,11,00,00,000 

 

29 EXPENDITURE AND EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON CASH BASIS)

(Amount in `)

Particulars For the year ended  
March 31, 2022

For the year ended  
March 31, 2021

Expenditure  96,402  18,635 

Earnings  -    -   

Total  96,402  18,635 

 

30 There were no customer complaints pending at the beginning  or at the closing of the period under 
consideration.

One compliant was received during the year and the same was duly resolved
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31 RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Deferred Tax Liability 

Depreciation  -  - 

Total  -  - 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Depreciation  13,63,771  6,51,829 

Provision for gratuity  11,96,382  7,89,199 

Provision for compensated absences  19,32,622  10,41,974 

Brought forward losses  20,06,457  87,65,475 

ROC filing fees  14,73,689  11,40,919 

Provision on loans & advances  74,89,547  34,38,804 

Total  1,54,62,468  1,58,28,200 

Total  NIL  NIL 

In the absence of  virtual certainty of future taxable profits , the Company has not recognised net Deferred 

Tax assets. 

32 OPERATING LEASES

The Company has operating lease agreements primarily for office space, the lease terms of which are for a 

period of 1 year to 3 years. For the year ended March 31, 2022, an amount of ` 1,35,85,824/- (Previous year  

` 71,57,882) was recorded as expenses towards lease rentals. The future minimum lease payments under operating 

leases are as follows:

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Less than 1 year  1,63,66,770  1,15,88,736 

1 year to 3 years  5,15,96,242  2,53,20,937 

3years and above  -    -   

Total  6,79,63,012  3,69,09,673 
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33 OTHER NOTES

	 a) 	 Segment reporting

		�  The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing loans in India. All the activities of the 

Company revolve around the main business. As such there are no separate business and geographic 

reportable segments as per Accounting Standard-17 “Segment reporting”.

	 b) 	 Movement of NPA

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(i)	 Net NPAs (%) 0.84% 1.27%

(ii)	 Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a) 	 Opening balance  2,64,94,911  -   

b) 	 Additions during the year  1,46,18,183  2,64,94,911 

c) 	 Reductions during the year  -   

d) 	 closing balance  4,11,13,094  2,64,94,911 

(iii)	Movement of Net NPAs

a) 	 Opening balance  2,29,71,891  -   

b) 	 Additions during the year  1,22,66,138  2,29,71,891 

c) 	 Reductions during the year  -   

d) 	 closing balance  3,52,38,029  2,29,71,891 

(iv)	� Movement of provision for NPAs (Excluding provisions on 

standard assets)

a) 	 Opening balance  35,23,020  -   

b) 	 Provisions made during the year  23,52,045  35,23,020 

c) 	 Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions  -   

d) 	 closing balance  58,75,065  35,23,020 

	 c) 	 Statutory Reserve				  

As per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company is required to create a reserve 

fund at the rate of 20% of the net profit after tax of the Company every year. As the Company has 

incurred loss during the year, hence no appropriation is required.

d) 	 Corporate Social Responsibility				  

The Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company, accordingly 

the Company has not incurred any expenditure towards corporate social responsibility for the year 

ended March 31, 2022.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

HIRANANDANI FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED80



34 RATIOS

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Variance Remarks

Current Ratio  1.28  0.88 46% Variance of 46% is due to 

Increase in AUM & Liquidity 

position of the Company in line 

with growth of the business.

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.18 1.11 -84% New Equity shares were issued to 

existing shareholders to support 

growth plans of the Company 

thereby increasing the share 

capital of the Company. 

Debt Service Coverage 

Ratio

 (15) 22 -168% Company incurred losses in  

2021-22 due to expansion of 

business operations

Return on Equity Ratio  (0.02)  0.02 -201% ROE is negative due to the loss 

reported. The said loss has been 

mainly due to expansion of 

business operations,the benefit 

of which will be  obtained in the 

coming years.

Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA NA As the Company is into Financing 

business, this ratio is not 

applicable

Trade Receivables Turnover 

Ratio

NA NA NA As the Company is into Financing 

business, this ratio is not 

applicable

Trade Payables Turnover 

Ratio

 0.04  0.02 136% Increase in trade payable in 

2021-22 is in line with increase in 

business in  2021-22

Net Capital Turnover Ratio  7.71  3.68 110% New Equity shares were issued to 

existing shareholders to support 

growth plans of the Company.

Net Profit Ratio  (0.13)  0.06 -311% NP ratio is negative in 2021-22 

due to loss incurred

Return on Capital 

Employed

-1.41% 0.8% -283% Return on CE is negative in  

2021-22 due to loss incurred 

on account of  expansion of 

business operations

Return on Investment. -1.36% 0.7% -285% Return on Investment is negative 

in 2021-22 due to loss incurred on 

account of expansion of business 

operations
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

35.1.	Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect 

of qualifying employees towards provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. The Company has no 

obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the statement of 

profit and loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as expense towards contribution to provident fund for the 

year aggregated to ` 1,38,81,569 (March 31, 2021 - ` 69,45,272).

35.2. Defined benefit plans

The Company operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles 

an employee, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to receive one-half month’s salary for 

each year of completed service at the time of retirement/exit.

Type of Benefit Gratuity

Country India

Reporting Currency INR

Reporting Standard Accounting Standard 15

Funding Status Unfunded

Starting Period April 1, 2021

Date of Reporting March 31, 2022

Period of Reporting 12 Months

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Change in defined benefit obligations during the year

Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 31,35,722 10,22,309 

Current service cost 15,15,030 9,90,046 

Interest cost 1,33,268 55,716 

Benefits paid  -   

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations - due to change in demographic 

assumptions

 (2,80,863)  9,78,578 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations - due to change in financial 

assumptions

 (3,40,086)  (2,28,117)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations - due to experience  5,90,514  3,17,190 

Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year 47,53,585 31,35,722 

 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses recognised in the statement of profit or loss for current period

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligation for the period    (30,435)  10,67,651 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on plan asset for the period  -    -   

Subtotal    (30,435)  10,67,651 

Profit or loss   (30,435)  10,67,651 
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(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Net interest cost for current period

Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period  31,35,722  10,22,309 

(Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning of the period)  -   

Net Liability/(Asset) at the beginning    31,35,722  10,22,309 

Interest cost   1,33,268  55,716 

(Expected return on plan assets)  -    -   

Net interest cost for current period  1,33,268  55,716 

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation  (47,53,585)  (31,35,722)

Fair value of plan assets - -

Fund Status (Surplus / (Deficit))  (47,53,585)  (31,35,722)

Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet  (47,53,585)  (31,35,722)

Expenses Recognised in the statement of profit or loss for current 

period

Current service cost   15,15,030  9,90,046 

Net interest cost    1,33,268  55,716 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses   (30,435)  10,67,651 

Past Service Cost - Non-vested benefit recognised during the period  -    -   

Past Service Cost - Vested benefit recognised during the period  -    -   

(Expected contributions by the employees)  -    -   

(Gains)/Losses on curtailments and settlements  -    -   

Net effect of changes in foreign exchange rates  -    -   

Change in asset ceiling  -    -   

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss  16,17,863 21,13,413 

Balance Sheet Reconciliation 

Opening net liability    31,35,722  10,22,309 

Expense recognised in statement of profit or loss   16,17,863  21,13,413 

Net Liability/(Asset) transfer in  -    -   

Net (Liability)/Asset transfer out  -    -   

(Benefit Paid directly by the employer)  -    -   

(Employer's contribution)  -    -   

Net Liability/(Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet   47,53,585  31,35,722 
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Assumptions As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Expected return on plan assets N.A. N.A.

Discount rate (Refer note (b)) 5.15% 4.25%

Future salary increase (Refer note (a)) 6% 6%

Rate of employee turnover  Senior 
Management/

KMP 2% &  
Others 40%

 Senior 
Management/KMP 
2% &  Others 36%

Mortality Rate during Employment Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban)

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08)

Notes:

a)	 The estimate of future salary increase takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 

factors. Further, the Management revisits the assumptions such as attrition rate, salary escalation etc., taking 

into account, the business conditions, various external/internal factors affecting the Company.

b)	 Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds as at the Balance Sheet 

date for the estimated term of the obligation.

c)	 Experience adjustments:

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to experience   5,90,514  3,17,190 

 Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets - Due to experience  -   

36 The Company has done restructuring during the year persunat to  RBI Notification RBI/2021-22/32/DOR.

STR.REC.12/21.04.048/2021-22 dealing with Restructuring of Advances to MSMEs & Notification RBI/2021-

22/31/DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dealing with Resolution framework for Advances to Individuals 

and other Businesses.Details of which are as under.

Sr 
No

Description Individual Borrowers Small Business

Personal Loan Business Loans

A) Number of requests received for invoking 
resolution process under Part A (#)

 -  - 10

B) Number of accounts where resolution plan 
has been implemented under this window 
(#)

 -  - 10

C) Exposure to accounts mentioned at (B) 
before implementation of the plan (INR)

 -  -  73,11,983

D) Of (C), aggregate amount of debt that was 
converted into other securities (INR)

 -  -  73,11,983

E) Additional funding sanctioned, if any, 
including between invocation of the plan 
and implementation

 -  -

F) Increase in provisions on account of the 
implementation of the resolution plan (INR)

 -  -  7,31,198
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37 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS (ESOP):

	 As on March 31, 2022, there are 2 separate ESOPs’ arrangements, which are described below.

Grant I Grant II Total

Date of Grant June 10, 2020 July 8, 2021

Number Granted 1,24,65,000 1,80,000 1,26,45,000 

Grants Lapsed 60,000 65,000 1,25,000 

Contractual Life N/a

Vesting Conditions On 3rd/4th/5th 

anniversary 

from the date 

of joining in the 

Company.

1/3rd each every 

year from date of 

grant

38 DIRECT ASSIGNMENT

The Company had in July 2019 entered into an assignment agreement for acquisition of a portfolio of secured 

loans of 529 accounts from an Originator for 13.99 Crore, as per the RBI Master Directions on Assignment. 

Particulars of the transactions are provided below:

(Amount in `)

Particulars  March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

No. of customer accounts acquired (#) Nil Nil

Value of the portfolio acquired Nil  Nil 

Outstanding amount  5,50,49,591  7,64,74,305 

(#)- Count in Nos

The servicing of the aforesaid portfolio is continued to being done by the Originator who is acting as Servicer 

as per the terms of Servicer agreement. An amount of ` 58,39,755(PY: 2,46,45,612) remains outstanding and 

overdue as at March 31, 2022 towards amounts collected by the Servicer and not remitted to the Company.
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39

39.1 �Disclosure Pursuant to paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-

Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016:

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Amount 
Outstanding

Amount 
Overdue

Amount 
Outstanding

Amount 
Overdue

Liabilities side:

1. Loans and Advances availed by the NBFC 
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but 
not paid)

(a) Debentures

- Secured - - - -

- �Unsecured (other than falling within 
the meaning of public deposits)

- - - -

(b) Deferred Credits - - - -

(c) Term Loans 11,80,138 - 25,61,356 -

(d) Inter-Corporate Loans and 
Borrowings

- - - -

(e) Commercial Paper - - - -

(f) Public Deposits - - - -

(g) Other Loans (Loan from Director) 71,00,00,000 - 1,11,00,00,000 -

2. Break-up of (1) (f)above (outstanding 
public deposits inclusive of interest 
accrued thereon but not paid)

(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures - - - -

(b) In the form of partly secured 
debentures i.e debentures where 
there is a shortfall in the value of 
security

- - - -

(c) Other public deposits - - - -

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Assets side:

3. Break-up of Loans and Advances including Bills Receivables 

[other than those included in (4) below]: (excluding interest 

accrued but not due)

(a) Secured (Refer note 12 & note 16) 4,10,54,00,855 1,74,07,87,457 

(b) Unsecured (Refer note 12 & note 16) 9,14,34,930 6,91,30,542 

4.  Break up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and Other Assets 

counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease Assets including Lease Rentals under Sundry Debtors

(a) Financial Lease - -

(b) Operating Lease - -
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(Amount in `)

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(ii) Stock on Hire including Hire Charges under Sundry Debtors

(a) Assets on Hire - -

(b) Repossessed Assets - -

(iii) Other Loans counting towards AFC Activities

(a) Loans where Assets have been Repossessed - -

(b) Loans other than (a) above - -

5. Break-up of Investments

Current Investments

1 Quoted:

(i) Shares:

(a) Equity - -

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds  45,00,00,000  18,00,00,000 

(iv) Government Securities - -

(v) Others (please specify) - -

2 Unquoted:

(i) Shares: - -

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds - -

(iv) Government Securities - -

(v) Others (please specify) - -

Long Term Investments

1 Quoted:

(i) Shares: - -

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds - -

(iv) Government Securities - -

(v) Others (please specify) - -

2 Unquoted:

(i) Shares: - -

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds - -

(iv) Government Securities - -

(v) Others (please specify) - -
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	 6	 Borrower Group-wise Classification of Assets Financed as in (3) and (4) above

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

1 Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -    -   

(b) Companies in  
same Group

 -    -    -    -    -   

(c) Other Related 
Parties

 -    -    -    -    -   

2 Other than Related 
Parties*

4,09,95,92,363 9,13,68,357 4,19,09,60,720 1,73,83,56,197  6,80,38,782.50 1,80,63,94,979 

Total 4,09,95,92,363 9,13,68,357 4,19,09,60,720 1,73,83,56,197  6,80,38,782.50 1,80,63,94,979 

*net of provisions for non performing assets

	 7 	 Investor Group-wise Classification of all Investments (Current and Long-term) in Shares and Securities 

(both Quoted and Unquoted):

(Amount in `)

Category As at  
March 31, 2022

As at  
March 31, 2021

Market Value 
/Break up 

Value or Fair 
Value or Net 
Asset Value

Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions)

Market Value 
/Break up 

Value or Fair 
Value or Net 
Asset Value

Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions)

1 Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -   

(b) Companies in same Group  -    -    -    -   

(c) Other Related Parties  -    -    -    -   

2 Other than Related Parties  -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -    -    -   

	 8	 Other Information

(Amount in `)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Related 
Parties

Other than 
Related 
Parties

Related 
Parties

Other than 
Related 
Parties

Gross non-performing assets*  -    4,11,13,094  -    2,64,94,911.00 

Net non-performing assets*  -    3,52,38,029  -    2,29,71,890.70 

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt  -    -    -    -   

*  Represents the gross Non-performing assets and net non-performing assets as per Company’s policy which is more conservative 
than the RBI’s Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company –Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. (Refer note 2.p)
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40 DISCLOSURE ON LIQUIDITY RISK BACKGROUND: 

RBI through its notification dated November 4, 2019 provided guidelines on liquidity risk management framework 

for certain categories of Non-Banking Financial Companies. The said guidelines, NBFC’s are required to publicly 

disclose the below information in the notes to accounts of the annual financial statements. Accordingly, the 

disclosure on liquidity risk as at March 31, 2022 is as under:

i)	 Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty

Financial Year No. of significant 

counterparties

Amount  

(` Crore)*

% of Total Deposits % of Total Liabilities

2021-22 1 71.08 N.A. 79.58%

2020-21 1 111.00 N.A. 91.14%

	 *From the outstanding amount, ` 71 Crore represents unsecured loan from director

	 Notes:

	� A “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated 

counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

	 Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surplus.

ii)	 Top 20 large deposits (amount in ` Crore and % of total deposits) – Not Applicable

iii)	 Top 10 borrowings

Amount (` Crore) % of Total Borrowings

71.08 99.8%

0.12 0.2%

iv)	 Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product

Sr. 

No.

Name of the product Amount (` Crore) % of Total Liabilities

1 Unsecured Loan* 71 79%

	 *represents unsecured loan from director

	 Note:

	 A “significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/

products which in aggregate amount to more than total liabilities of 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs  
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v)	 Stock Ratios:

Sr. 
no.

Stock Ratio %

1 Commercial paper as a % of total public funds N.A.

2 Commercial paper as a % of total liabilities N.A.

3 Commercial paper as a % of total assets N.A.

4 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than 1 year) as a % 
of total public funds

N.A.

5 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than 1 year) as a % 
of total liabilities

N.A.

6 Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than 1 year) as a % 
of total assets

N.A.

7 Other short term liabilities as a % of total public funds N.A

8 Other short term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 97%

9 Other short term liabilities as a % of total assets 18%

	 Note:

Other short term liabilities represent current (i.e. due within one year) portion of borrowings.

Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surplus.

vi)	 Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management	

	 The Board of Directors of the Company has the overall responsibility and oversight for the management 

of all the risks, including liquidity risk, to which the Company is exposed to in the course of conducting 

its business. The Board approves the governance structure, policies, strategy and the risk limits for the 

management of liquidity risk. The Board of Directors approves the constitution of the Asset Liability 

Management Committee (ALCO) for the effective supervision, evaluation, monitoring and review of various 

aspects and types of risks in general and liquidity risk in particular. 

	 The meetings of ALCO are held at quarterly intervals. ALCO provides guidance and directions on aspects 

such as interest rate outlook, liquidity, debt market position and funding sources to name a few. 

41 PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES:

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current years’ 

presentation.	
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42 ADDITIONAL NOTES:

1-	� No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under 

the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988).

2-	 The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

3-	� During the year, the Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under section 

248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.”

4.a-	�No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 

shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries.

4.b-	�No funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding 

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

5-	� There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts and which have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income.
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